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~ Mrs. Sobell, you h~j a lawyer jownsta1rs, 1ijn t t

SobellRoseAugus Ii 24, 1950

BY MR. LANE:
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Il-R-.....;..O-.. -S-TI:-ri.---S-,-O-B-E L L calle:) as a wi tness, having

III firs; been duly swo:n by the Foreman, testified as

f'cllows:-

I
yOU"? h Yes, sir.

~ Anj I think hepl'obably to13 you thai, when you

testify here you have to tell the truth because if youdo

not tell the truth you are SUDject to the penalties of per­

jury -- I think he has a:ivised you of that, hasn a t be?

A a,s right.

Q How olj are you? A 56.

Q Where were you born? A In Russia.

What part~RuSSia1 ~ Ukraine.

Q Ukraine« A Yes.

Belezorca ..

Q That is in the southern part t 18 it? A ~ t~..

A

so.

Q Do you remember the town or tbe ~llage?.-
Q' Towarje the Black Sea? A I jon 1 t remember.

Q When jij you come·to the Unite5 States? A In

the early pa.rt of Septem bar 1906.

When jij you -- are you an Amerioan citizen?

When j1j you Oecome naturalized? A I am na turali z

Through my husban~.A~aturalizej!

Yes, s1r.

tiitough my-tiUS mnti.

I
L A



~ Through marriage to your husband? A That

Q Was he oorn In this oountry? A No, sir.

Q Where was he born? A In Russia.

Q lhat part? A The same city, tbe same town.

Q When jij you meet him for the first time? A WeI. ,

when iNe came here.

Q Did you come on the same boati? A No, sir.

Q You met him aftel you oame to this country?

A That t s rigb~.

~ Di~ you meel; him in New York? A That,; I s righ;.

Q Were you married tiD him in New York? A Yes, sir.

Q When? A May 22, 1915·

Q 19151 A Yes, sir.

Q How many children jo you have? A Two.

Q. Who hre they'! A Morton anj Beverly.

Q When were they born? A Morton was born on

April 11, 1917 I anj Beverly was born on May 7,. 1924-.

Q Mortonwae born when, in 19181 A Morton was

born in 1917·

Q. And Beverly was bor n 1 n 1924? A YeS.

Q Are they both marrie~? A Yes, sir.

Q They both have chilixen? A No; my daughter 18

expecting a cbilj.

Q, Has your son Morton been ffiCi.rrlej more than once?

A No; just once.

Q Whom jlj he marry? A Helen.
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Q. Helen who'j

Rose ~obell

A Helen Guerowitz.

Q When' was he married? ~ March 10th, 1945.

How many chiljraJ. :iDes he ha ve? A He has one

chil:i anj a chilj by her first marriage.

~ She was marrie:i before? A Tha t t S right.

Q Where JiJ ~orton go to school? A He went to

PubliC School,138 , an:i then he went to Junior High School,
,

anj then he wen; to Stuyvesant High School, an1 then he

wen ti to 01 ty Co lIege.

Q When jij he get through City College? A Through

with Oity College?

leG Yes; when j13 he graduate? A Itbink it was in

'3g• I ~ nut sure of the jaties.

Q Do you know what he j1j after he finishe~ C1~y

College? A Yes; he got a job anj he went away from home.

(\, He went away from home? A Yes; he got a job in

Wash1ng~on.

Q Whom was li Wlth, jo you know? A 1 Jon1t remember

Q Has he contf1butej to the support of you and your

hus banj r A He has been very gooj. He jijn'~ have to. ae
helpe3 us sometimes when we neejej help. Be was a very goo3

boy, very goo:J, the best there is.

Q. Is there any way that you can account for his

becoming affi11atej with the Commun1s~ Party? A I beg your

par:lon'?

Q Is there any way, any reason you Can give, why he



LE-4-

1:)188
Rose Sobell

beoame affi11atej with the Communist Party? Do you know any

reason for it? A I refuse to answer. I jor:'t know-

Q Let me expl&in to y~u. You cannot refuse to answe ,

you h~ve no right to refuse to answer tha~ ques~1on. h I

would like to see my counsel.

MR. L~NE: Wl11you excuse her for a minute

or two? I wi.ll ask further questions,. but in the

meantime I will call for her counsel.

(Mr. Lane leaves roor.a and then returns _)

(llr. Lane, res um1 ng: )

Q When 51:i youx son go to Mexico? A I, Jon' t know

when, six.

i.t Now you are unjex oath. You have no ljea when

be went to Mexico? A No, sir.

Q Did he tell you he was leaving for Mexlc01 A He"

oallej, me up tha t he was lea v1ng for a vacation.

Q For a vacation? A That's r1ght.

Q Dijn't he tell you that; he had left his work?

A No, he jij not, sir.

Q A l1til·le lou5er. A He jij not.. He callej me up

and he tolj me he was leaving for a vaca tion.

He c~llej you up anj tolj you he was leaving for

a vacation? .b That IS right.

~ when jij he call you up? A Sometime -- ! JO not

remember what j~y; on the week of June 21st.

Q Vihat time was 1 t'i A In the morning. It was about

.8:30, between g anj 8:3.0.
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~ .i:-~O was rrnreWh-en: ne <:fa

Q Wha t number ji j he call? A. Cypr eSB 2-3535.

one.

An:! jtB t exactly wbcti :ii-j t:e say aSbesti youoan

recall? A He saij, IlMom, we have jecijed to take a vacation

and e are going awa.y.1I

~ Dij they take the chilJren with them? A Well,

I assume they jij.

'Q DGn- t Y~Ll know? A They ji:i.

i-"i Did he tell you where he was going? A No, sir.
"'"
Q Did he tell you when he was coming back? j~ No,s!-t:\. •

Q Did yeu ask him when he was coming back?

A I d1j not ask.

Q Were ycu interested? I was interestej but I

jon't ask. Hels a grown man.

Q. A Ii ti tIe 10 uj eX now. ~i He 1 s a grown man anj he

•does things. He s been away before. Bets been away from

home twelve years now.

~ Di~ he ever lntrojuce you to Mr- Rosenberg?

A l~o, sir ..

~ Dc you knGw Rosenberg, Julius Rosenberg?

A No, sir.

~ Never saw him? .i lJo, 81 r •

husbanJ h~s it. 1 50n 1 t remember the jate.

Did he comntunlce-. te wi t h you 'Yvhile he was in

We h&ve one let~er.

MyA I jGn't remember.When jij he write that?

l~o tar; b.l1 'i

'j

I
!
1

]
1

I---I
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A That they are on the

vaoa tion C:1nj they are havi ng a. good t1me, and tihe baby is

wc,lklng --

MR. LANE: Excuse me. Will you excuse the

la5y for a moment?

TBE FORE~I\: You are excllse:i for a moment.

(\lii tness leaves anj then is recallej.)

MR. LaNE: Will the stenographer go back to

the ques~ion I askej that the lajy refuse~ to answer?

Q. ( Que s til on rea:I to w1 tness 1 as follo\,s ~ fl Q 1 s

-sher e r:nY way, any reason you can g1 ve, why he became

affl11ateJ with the Communist Pax~y? .Do you knew any

f. 0,r 1 t "or II ).reas on .8. 1 jo no t: •

Q You jo know that your son was aff1liatei wlththe

Communis t Party? A I j1 j not.

Q. ]Did you yourself -- were you yourself aff111ate:i

"vi th the Uommunl Sli Pax'Gy? A I ref use 'Co answer.

Q On what grountrr A On the grountl or incriminating

myself.

Q Did you ever s1gn a petit~0n fOTthe Communist

Q 'I'hat· s for elec'Gions.:nj thlogS? A Yes.

81nce your son left the Unitej States in June

have you visite5 yOUI sonls house? A Yes,sirj we were there.

When were you there? A We were there on Sunday.

~ Do y0U recall the jhte, Mrs. Sobell? A It was th
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end of that week of June elat. We wenG there anj collectej

some fooj,

ano I.

some perishable food, and t00k it heme. I

"hhen y011 say "we". vlhom ::Io you mean'( A My hUB lanf

'while yL·ur son wa.s away jij you make any payments

on your son' 8 house? A I ji j, 81 I'.

Q What was that? A' I maje the monthly payment for

his house.

WaS tha~ a mortgage payment? A Yes, I believe SD

Q Whom 5i j you make it; to? A To the County 'l'rus,t

Company in Taxxytom,N. Y.

Q Did youx daughter make payment also? A My :taught:;

\:(, Yes. A l~oJ alr.

Q Who is Ejith Levi~vr A Tha t I a no ti my j aughtax.

Q. Who is that? A My jaughter-in-law's sister.

Q YoU? jaughter-in-law 1 s sis tar £ A Tha'li'S right.

Q Where joes she Ii ve? A She lives in Washington~;,

Eji th Lev1 tove A Thall's r1ght.

Q Where :ioes ehe live in Washington'? A I jon t t

remember the ajjxess; in Arlington, Virginia.

Does she work for the Govexrment?

Q Yes. ~ She joes not.

A Doe s she?

Q Is she married? A No, six.

'Nell, ;;;:he is your j6ushter-in-1Ci.w l s sister, anj

your jau~hter-in-law

son Morton! A Yes, sir.

Y0U hre referring to the wife of yo



LB-g

9192 I~
I

Rose 800011

You knuw that she maje & payment in August on the

..L Dr tgage on the house, you know tha t, jon I t you? A I m.a:is

a payment in August, sir'. I:1o no ti knew whether she !In je a

payment •

You maje a payment in August? A Yes.

~ Who maje tne Ju~y payment on the house! A She

Q Thaij w~s $791 A That's right.

Q Di j she tell you h bou t that? AYes, sir.

When jij she tell you about it! A r jon't

remember-

Q Well, in the last, few \~eeks, jo you think?

A Well, she tol~ ii to me, yes.

~ Anjjld she tell you that Morton tol:l her to make

the paymen t for Llim? A She jij no t-

Eow W(;;4S it that she maje the paymen t"r A I 50 not

~~ow) sir, bU~ she jij.

~ ~ny j1jyou m~ke the payment? A I wante~ to keep

my sools house. I ha~ hope thatbe would come back snd I

wantej Ghe house for hi~.

Q Was tha t· the $79 payment? A Yes, $79.29.

~ How much :'loes your husrenj make a week? ~ $75-

An:! I :le·n t t suppuse be is too wealthy, is he?

He hasn t
+: got too m.uch ill0neY"r a No, sir.

houser
1~(;,s1r.

,-
Do you own your own # iJ'Ve live in an"'c(J

apar tmen t ilL-' use.
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~ How muchjo you P&Y forrent? A $45-

~ Do you have money in the bank? A Yes.

~ Very much? a Not very much.

~ Bow lTluch woulj you say1 fA VIe ha'V€ a bOUli $2500.

Q, Dij you ho.'Ve to jraw on that money to pay for

your son's mortgagee A Yes, sir-

Q What is the house worth, that is, your sonls

house? A My so n I shouse?

know.

Q Di.1 your son tell you to make tha" payment on the

house? A Ba,sir.

Q, You weren t t sure when he WEtS corning back, were

I
I

I

I -

I

you?
Ia. That; s rlgh t.

Q Did he borrow any money from you when he left?

( Cont. Dy I Fa)
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Q Did he ever discuss tIE Rae enbergs 11\~lt h you or

August 24, 1950

Re: J 0 thY). Doe
IFG-ll

(From I
LB) !

your husband"j A No, sir.

Q Has your son" to your knowledge, ever been a

member of the Communist Party cr the Young CommunlstLeague'l

A I do not know.

Q T he answer 1s no, as far as you know - .... are yo

sure of the t? A I would like to see my attorney ..

THE FORElIAN: Wha t was the answer?

MRo LANE: She would like to see her attorneJ

Will you excuse her for -the momentt

THE FOBEMAN~ Yes, she is excused. temporarily

[Witness ]eaves Grand Jury room with Mr. Lane,

and they return. J
/

MR .. LANE (To Reporter): Will you repeat the

question once again?

{Reporter reads: ·'Has your son, to your

knowledge, ever be en a member of the Commun1st

Party or the Young Communist Leaguei"J

THE WITNESS: I do not know ..

Q, Now, I want to get~.ck to that payment on your

son's house .. If you thought that he was only on vaca.tion,

wha t 'prompt ed you to make a payment on your son's house?

A The payment was due, ana I wanted to keep the house for
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~ How did you know it was due? A vIe 11, I know

my EO n ..

Q Louder, please.

paymentlS.

A I kn~i my son made monthly

Q, WeIl, hOiA7 did. you know he h8.o.n f t made payments

before he left? A I aid not know.

Q Then wbat prompted you to inquire? A The

girl, Ed1e, made a payment, and she said the next Plyment

Is due on the first of August.

Q, When dia she tell you the. t she had made this

paymen t1 A I can" t recall now when 1 t wa.s.

Q "tIe11, some time within t he la at fe,\tl weeka, I

take 1 t? A That was prior to the payment.

\qj, She made a paym61 t in August Jdid.n t t she -

she made the July payment in August, dld.l1 t t she? A I

don t t know ,sir, ittrhen she made the ~ymen t ..

Q, But a.fter she made the IXiyment did she telephon

you or did she write you or did she see :you personally,

to tell you that she made this payment?

me.

A She had seen

Q Where did she see you? A I met her.

Q, Where? A We were in the country.

Q 'tihereabouts 1n the country? A I ref'use to

answer on account of incriminatipg myself.

MRo Lfu~E: Will you excuse her again, Mro
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Foreman?

THE FOREP..AN: Certainly.

[Witness leaves Grand Jury Room with Mr. Lane t

and they return.]

1~R9 LANE: (To Reporter) Will you repeat the

question, plea8e~

rReporter reaas: "Whereabouts in the countra~~

THE WITNESS: In Wingdale, New York ..

Q, Wingdale, New York? A Yes, sir.

Q What was up at Wingdale, New York?

country place.

Q Whose country place? A Whose?

Q Yes - \'Ilho owned 1t? A I don f t know ..

A A

~ '\,ell l 'Whose place was 1 t? A It 'tvas aeummer

resort in Wingdale) New York ..

Q What 1s the name of the place? A (No answer i'~

Q Do you recall? A I don't remember.

Q Who was up there with you - yoU!Yhusband?

A Yes, sir.

Q, And ho'W long a go i~ras thet? A My husband went

up there the ]a st p;. rt of June and the. first ~,reek1n JulYIl

~ And 'tr.rhen did you go up? A I 'Was up there two

days and the n f orthree day s '0 I did not stay all the time.

Q You went up for two days a.nd then you went

hnmp? A Yes.. sir.
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Q And tlin you ca~ back for three days more?

'A Yes, sir ..

Q And who else \-las up therE all tha.t timeY

A l·1y husbe.nd e

Q Your husband and Edith'? A Edith Levltov.

~ Edith Levltov~ A Yes, sir.

Q, What does Edith Levltov do'? A She is a typls

and stenograp her.

Q She lIorks in Washington?

Q She lives 1n Washington?

A I don't kno'Wthat

AYeS,S iT' - now.

~ What 1s her telephone number? A I wouldn ' t

kno'W J sir __

~ Vlhcmdoe s she l&Tork for? AShe 1s not working

now.

Q, Whomdld she work for? A. I "IJouldn l t knoll;, slr

Q Is she in New York now? A She is in Washing....

ton now, to my knowledge.

Q, When 1s the :lB. st time you communicated 1/',11th

her) e1 ther by telephone or in J:erson or by letter?

A By person. She came into Ne1Ai York" I wouldn 1 t know

exactly wr~t time.

Q vi he n ~'I'a s 1t? A A couple of we eks ago.

~ And she went over to your house?

met her.

A No; I
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Q Where? A Downtown.

Q Whereabouts" downtown?

husband1 6 union.

A In the union, my

Street.

~ What l'ras that - \\nat is the union? A On 50th

Q Wha. t un10n 1s 1 t? A The Pharmacy Unlono

iq;, You met her a,t the union hall? A. That' 8 right.

Q Was anybody else there? A Yes; there were

workers there.. \fe had to pay the dues, s.ncl she came d.own

there.

Q. She is not a member of the union, lsshe?

A No, sir ..

~ You hLid a little conference there~ A (No

a.nswer .')

Q You had a talk" a chat? A. ltlell"

Q Up at Wingdale did you tal k about your so oJ

Morton"l A No, sir.

~ You d1dn Tt talk at all about him? A 1rJell, tit

usual thing, about the oo.by ana. things like that.

~ Did you ta.lk about the house an6 th(? mortgage?

A 't.jell, we were tallr1ng abouts. lot of thiL~S$l
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we went to the country together.

lei The three of you went up there? A No - _

Q. The three of you went up t here together?

Q Vias that by pre-arrangement - - did you decice

to go up t here to gether? A v·Tell, it so ha,ppened that my

husband's vacation was arranged a long time in advance.

The Js at week in June and the first week in July - that

was his scheduled t1mefor vac~at1on, and that ,.,as the ar-

rangement"

Q How dl d. she happen to join you?

she 1 by t he way? A I Wj uldn I t know, sir.

Q \\lel.l, 1s she 't'Arenty or thirty?

than twenty, I t~~nk.

How old is

A She is more

Q And le sa than t hlrty? A Probably ..

Q How did she ha.ppen to join you there? A Well.

"r€ sal d we were going up and she sa,id she would like to go \~

too, Etnd she came.

~ And did you talk a.bout the Ros enberg case t~fnl1e

you werEt he re: '1 A No, sir.

Q You read about Julius Roo enberg being arrested,

etian t t you? A I read in the papers.

Q, You read abou t it? A I read about everything;
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I r'ead thE: ps. per s •

~ Let us stick to one thlng~ You know ~at I am

talking about l Mrs. Sobell. I am talking about Julius

Rosenberg. He was in your sonls class at City College.

You kne\r that, dian't you? A I dlC}flot, sir.

Q. You kne~,T he knew your son? A No, sir.

Q Did Edith Levltov talk about Julius Rosenberg?

A No, sir.

Q There was nothing· mentioned about that at all?

A No I sir.

Q Is she a Communist? ' A ! don 1 t kno1ll1 that I sir.

Q Did s he ever say she Vl1tlS? A No, sir"

Q Did she ever say she was a. member of the Young

Communist League? A No, sir.

~ Do you know whether your son Mortc).n 1s a member

of the Young Communist League? A I do not I sir.

~ Do you know whether he is a member of the

Communis t Party? A I d.o not, sir"

MR. LANE: Mr., Foreman, do you have any ques-

tlons, or tbe members of the jury'?

THE FOREMAN: I donJt remember - did you

answer tha.t question, HAre you a member of the

Communist Party?U

THE WITNESS: I refusEd to answer on grounds
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of' lncr1m1natlng myself,

A JUROR: Did you receive any mail whl~ you

were at Trllngdale?

Th~ WITNESS: NO J sir.

A JUROR: Did anyonei

THE vlITNESS: No, 61 r .

A JUROR: Did you ever go there before?

TF£ ~~NESS: Yes, sir.

A JUROR: Did you ever receive mail while you

were there before?

THE WITNESS : Well,' I don t t remember I>

Q, Do you know a man by the name of Eli tcher'l

A Yes, sir ..

Q Do you know him well? A Iwouldn'lt S8,Y well.

Q. Has he been to your house? A No, sirll

Q Is he a friend of your sonlo? A Neighbors.

Q They 11ve next door? .A Yea.

Q Q, To your son? A ThetIs right.

Q, Has Elltcher ever visited your home?

Q How long have you known him? A They 'Worked 1n

Washington together.

Q D1d your son ever talk about him? A !"fstter

of fact"

Q, Is there anything €lse you can tell the Gr~nd
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Jury about your son t s act1vi ties? A My co n is a very g<Di

boy 1 and he "78.S al~rays. honest and kind and good 1 and h~

did - - he was the best son there is, and he all~Ys helped

us. When he was tlr,relve years old) he l'a d fifty dollars

saved up from nickels and dimes in the drug store, carryin

prescriptions J ana. my husband needed. 8. suit, and he a,ald l

ttMe.,. take that money, I don't need it.. I really don't ned

it. You can use it - - "

fqJ, How can a boy that good become affiliated. with

a group of Communists? A I don I t kno~T, sir.

Q It is a. little inconsistent, isn't it? A He

is honest and he is good II There must be SGme mistake~

Q \Vas he in the Army? A N0 1 sir ..

Q \A1as he a.rafted? A No, sir.

Q Why? A I Cb nIt kno'\l' 0 He gave more than s.

gallon of blood to ti:e blood dona,tlon·e.

Q But he didn't get into the service himself"

A No, sir.

Q. And you baiTS no explanation as to ~rhy you a.no

your ds,ughter-1n-la1/lyf S 81 st.er took care' of t,t£tt roar tga.ge,

lttrhen you knetr. r that ~your Bon was only on vace.tlon? A We

wanted to keep the house until be comes b0Ck.

Q \"!hen 'Was he coming baek? A I d1dn t t know, sir.

Q Ho~ long ct vacation had he ta l.ten befor'e, in any

year? A I don t t knO~7, sir. He '\tI.TEtS away from home a long
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(

time ..

Q Did you know re .ha d given up his job, a.t the

place ¥rhere he 'Worke d? A No, sir I I d1 on ft knO~f t hat ..

:-,

'OC\I ~id he tell you that? A No" sir ..

I

. 1

I
I

I
i
I

Q. Did a.nyone e'\rer tell you that? A No, sir.

Q Are you sure you never heard t~~t before!

~ He had i:E:en away for t\i\TO months or more, ha.Cln't

he J ana you knel\1 he could,p' t affere that on his salary -

tha t kind of a vaca,ti on - di a.n f t you? A (No .ansttler .. )

Q As a IDatter of fact" di. dn 1 t you know he l/faa

never coming back? A I did not, sir.

Q .uie. you hear he was never coming back? A I

did not know, sir.

Q D1d he ever tell you he \'Iraan.' t coming back~

A No, sir •

Q How did he leave the country? A I don 1 t know

sir.

Q. iNhere did he get the money to JE ave? A I dont

knOVtT, si r.

~ Did he tell you how he was going by trains

or by plane or by automobile'? A N0 1 sir l I didnft ask

him.

\q(" Do you know how hE did go? A He dldn ' t tell m •
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I
,I

f" Have you conferred liT!th her '\1011 thin the last few~

days? A Yes, I havE seen n: r.

,-, \v hen \\1as the.t? A The last three days.Iq!;

~ '~r.l8. t did you talk 11 bout? A 1tJell, -r,,"E' were talk

ing about Morton.

Q TN'ha t did she say? A We "lee taLl(ing.

'" But It,rha t did she say about Morton? A (No

Q Dldyou' ask her '~here they lJITere bound for when

they left t.te United States? A Yes; she told me.

Q, w l'a t elid she tell yo';1? A That they took a

plane and went to M~x1co.

Q W'mt t foj'? A For a vacation.

Q Did she SB.Y the. t 'l A For a, VB.Ce. t 10n .

Q D 1ii she S8.y that? A My o.aughter-ln-1a\IJ.

Q Did she say the. tt A Yes, sir.

~ Din s~ say how long they intended to be gone

on the vacat1 on~ A She told me tha t ye sterday"

Q, Tr4i t they had! gone for a. vaeat10n? A Yes, sir

Q, And diC1, she sa.y how long they intended to be on

that VB.cat ion? A ShE.- did not) sir.

Q Did she say 'tr'Jhen they intended to come back?

A, t5 he 61 a no t , sir.

~ D 1d she sa.y why they came b&ck? A She did
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Q, Die she te11 you wba t they were doing in Mexico?

A Ye s; the y were 11ving there.

Q, Did sr.t.e tell you the~t your son trle a to arrange

passage on a ship for a foreign PO~t, out of Mexico?

Q Did. you discuss it with her? A N0 1 sir.

Q, You 0.1 an t t men t 10n :1t '1 A No J sir,

Q What d_ld she say about that? A That they lIrere·

havi ng a €pod time.

Q Is t hat all? A They were 11v1ng there and

cooking and eating.

'Q, Ano the. t is 8.11 she talked. a bout? A Tba tIs

right.

She did..~ 1 t telJ. you about the arrest of her

husband? A No, sir.

Q She said nothing about that? A No, sir.

~ Remember, Mrs Cl Sobe 11, the.t you are under oath.

I must remind you again~ I don't like to press you. Afte

all, I l"ealize you are a mother and - - A Well, she

told me how they came back.

Q, Well, that 18 what ! am getting at - - what

dId she say't I wi thdrallt tha t.. ~~Jhat I want to knC*" now

is the name of tt.e pJa ce where you stayed in W1ngd.ale.

A Can I see my attorney1
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Q Yes; but that should not be he.rd for YOU o

Walt a m1nute. First you"bave to refuse to answer on the

ground that 1 t will incriminate you. A I refu.se to ans

on the grounds that 1 t wi 11 lncrimina te me. '

~ Giving the name of the place where you stayed

in Wingoale will incriminate ~{ou? A Yes> sir fI

~ You understand that'l A Yes I si r ~

MR. LANE: May she be exeused~

THF FOPEMAN: You a re excused.

[Witne ss leaves Grand Jurjt" room with Mr. !.are t

and they returneJ

}.ilR. LANE (To Reporter): May ~re have that

questi on repeated, please?

LReporter reads:1t.Wha t I TArant to kn~r now

is the name of the place where you sts.yed in

Wingdale.ftJ

THE WITNESS: Camp UnitYo

Q Camp wha t"l A Un!ty"

Q Dld you have to pay to stay there? A Yes, a1 ..

Q How much? A Forty-three dollars B. week.

~ And. who runs Camp Un!ty? A It is La.ke Ellis

Corporation.

Q Who 1s the manager? A Louis Pasternack o

Q, Louis Pasternack? A ThB.t I S right.
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Q Is he the one that runs it?

manager"

A He 1s the

Q, Whe. t did you .ta ve to pay to stay t1':e re?

A Forty-three do lIars 0

Q For how long? A A week.

Q, Apiece? A r.Lhat't s right.

-QDo you go up every summer? A No, not every

summer.

Q Do they have meetings up there? A (No answer l

Q, Do they have talks? A T hey have ..

Q Did they ha,ve any talks or meetings while YOU

\olere up there! A I (lon t t know" I wasn1t pay1ng anY' at-

tentlon ..

Q Dld_ you talk to anyone else up there about your

son or the Rosenbergs, except Pasternack? A No, sir.

Q Did you talk to Pasternack? A No" sir.

lq;, You talked to no one? A No, sir ..

Q, Except this girl? A I didn t t talk to e nyboQ'

Q Did you talk to this girl, Edith, about your

.son? A About my sdn?

~ She was up there fora week" too, wasn't she?

A Yes, sir ..

~ Now we get 1:e. ek. to your d.aught~r-ln-18.'fAT, when

you saw her yesterday. What did she say about your son
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Mar t4.n a.nd his trip to Mexi co? A Well, they he d a fllce

~ How long were you wi th her'? A few hours.A.

That1s all.AQ Is that a111

I tr1p and they had a good t1me there.

I
Q And t,b.a t 1s all you said in a few hours'l A That' s

alIi tha tt s right.

Q liho else l\TaS there? A My husband.

Q, Whereabouts was this meet1ng? A It l/iras not a

'meeting} it ~ms in my house.

Q What time? A .She stays in my house.

Q. But wha t tlmeY A She is ",,1. th us.

Q I know that, but what time dia this conversat1d

take placeY AI dontt know; some time during the day.

"" Doeen t t your husband work during the daY? A On

week he war ks 1a. te and one week he "Torks early. He is a

pharma cis t .

Q And this week? A He \\forks late.

Q And, you bad this talk in the morning? A That t1
right. He goes to work t~ro-th1rty.

~ And \~rhat die she say, for instance, about when

I they were coming back, or plannec to come back? A They
I
I
I are back ..

Il Q, I kn~r the. t" but \"Tha t 0.10. ahe say - - die she
!

__~... ... .._._.L.-SaY_.an.yt;.hing.~.QU:tt hE 1r 'Qlan s for com1ng be ck? Dld sheI .._.. ~_._-~ .-.---,----.-----.-... ~
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say anything about how lon g the y had planned to sta.y 1n

Mexico? A No, sir, she didn't.

Q How long were they in Mexico? A They Tj\rere

away a long time, I guess; I don ' t know how longe

Q, A couple of months, maybe? A I guess so.

Q. How about t l'F mail when your son wa,s a.way'?

Die. you go over ana collect his mail? A No, sir, I did

not.

Q what happene d to the mall? A :r don't know,

Q Let me ask you this question: I assume that
_, It

they get milk at that house that your son lived at - they

get rn11kde 11vered every day? A I don t t know, sir.

Q Ha ven ft you been there? A Yes,! have been

there.

Q Don't trey ha.ve yo~g children? A Yes, they

have a oo.b y •

~ DonItt ley get milk'l A I guess they do.

Q, Don't t hey have a man deli verlng milk? A I

suppose eo.

0, DonItthey ge t ne liSps. per st A I don I t know.

~ Do you get milk? A No, 1 donI t.

Q, Do you get n€~rspapers? A I buy ne,\\1spapers.

Q, Well, die1 anyone order the gas or electricity

shut off' A I don It kno1t11 , sir.
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Q As far as you know, they didn't? A No, sir.

'" Did you coll~ \,';1; any mail at 'your son t shouse,

at any timet A No, sir.

~ lJld you go ov er to your son's house l,rh11e he was

a\f,ray? . A ! was the re once.

Q Did your husband go over? A No, sir.

~ !Lid anyone go over? A I don r t know that.

Q Who had the keys to his house·i A!. d1th Levito~'o

Q,She ba d the key" AYe s 1 s1 r "

sir.

Q' Die. she live the re while they were a~yt A

them.

Q vtlere did sne get the key? A She lived with

Q. She stayed there all the time, they were gone,

1s thet rignT,? A No, sir.

Q, Where did she go when they left? A She went

with us to the country.

Q Bact she came back after a week - 'What did she

do ~rhen are came back? A She went to Washington.

Q, I thought you said she "ras work1ng in Washington

before that (I A She was not, sir. She lived with her

sister..

Q; Did ete work in 'Ne~! ytfrk? A Yes, .SIt'.

Q Whereabou.ts? A I don't know that, sir.
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Thatls

5 he is home,.

A

A

Rose Sohell

A It is in Arlington ,

I don't knO~i the address off.fA

A I dqnotknow, s1rll

" But you d1an't do it? A 'Jha t 1 S right.

Q And you dldn rt co llect any ma.11 at all? A

~ And you only received one letter from yo~

Q Where is that letter'l A My husband has it.

THE FOREMAN: You received one letter.

Q \Ii he. t street is i ttl

you are a mot h: r, and bave a au PPCB edly very de-

voted son, and I would like to say, too, that

this group he re ha ve children - some may and

may not - and we are rather intelligent, I

and ~~th all that devotion you didntt write your

son B. le tter at all down there in Mexico?

THE WITNESS: I d1dn t t know where to, sir.

~ Oh, she lives in Washington?

leW. Whereabouts':

Q. You don 1 t know l~her€' she 1a?

tr~clty cut off?

Virginia..

Q, When did she go home? A ! don t t know; sir.

Q, Do you know whethe r she had the gas or ale c-

hand.

~ You say1she is in Washington nC7G?

IFG-l~

1----....~.. ~.~
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THE FOF~N: You jij not know?

THE, WITNESS: No, sir.

THE FO~N: As a mother with such a devoted

son you werentt interested in knowing where he was?'

TEE WITNESS: I waS interes tej, sir.

THE FOREMAN: You were interestej but not to

the exten t of getliir.Lg his address to write to him?

THE' WITNESS: I knew he WQulj take care of

. himself.
I

Hes a grown man. He I s been away from

home a long time; he has always taken care of himself

THE FOREMAN : Isn It 1 t quite natural for a

parent or mother, after liWD months, to write to the

chilj1

THE WITllTj;SS: I jid not know we haiito write,

sir ·

(l[~. Lane, resuming:)

Q. Did you have his ajjress in Mence? A No,s1r.

Q Well, he wrote to you from there, ~ijnrt he?

A He wrote only the last week.

Q From Mexico! A Yes.

~ He gave you his a~jress teen, j1~n't he? A No~

sir.

Q No ajixess on the letter? A No.

You jij not know where he was &11 this time?

Q As a matter of f&ct,:1i:in I t he communicate with



(WITNESS EXCUSED)

you while he was away? A No,six.

Q You are positive, an~ you know this is unjer

oath? A Yes.

.A Pos1 t1 va.Q. You are sure?

MR. LANE: You are excused temporarily and

you are still llnjer sUbpoena, ano. the Foreman will

tell me when they want you to come back again. Tell

your husban:i to wait a minute.. WeIll have him in for

a seconj. You can go now.

~?513

IB-2 Rose Sobell
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LOU ISS 0 BEL L ,

LOU1S Sobell

oalled as a witness, havlng

\

first been july sworn by the Foreman, testifien as

follows:-

BY MR. LANE:

Q lIlx. So cell, how old are you? A 61-

Q Are you a ci tizen'( A Yes, sir, that1e ri gbt.

~ You axe the father of Moxton Sobell? A Yes.

Q You have a la.wyer outsi~e too, haven't you?

A That 1 s right-

Q He has a~vise:I you of your const1 tu;ional rights

an~ so forth1 A Yes.

Q You xeceivej some mail ixom your Bon, jij you,

1n the last few wee:m? A I 51 j.

Q Where was it from, Mexico? A I got a letter. I

have no envelope-

~ Did you get a letter with no envelope?' A It is

not worth asking where it is from_

l' Q Will you projuce thafJ le~ter so we can mark it

for ijentification? A Yes.

Q Tti s is the only le~ ter you recei verI? A That IS

the only letter I have got.

(MARKED GRAND JUrtY EX- 1, this jate.)

Q Did Y0U receive any telephone calls from him?

11 No, I ji1 not.

~ Or jij you receive any messages of any sort while

he was away? .a. No-.
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You j1j not receive any?

I saij I j1j not xecelve any.

Q Did you know what he was away for, the reason why

he was away? A All I know is, ~s my wife tolj me, he spot

to her anj saij he woulj b~ away for a vacation, took a

vacation, a lengthy vacation somewbere.

; Q J'. 11 ti tIe louder now. A I sai j, all I know is

what my wife tolj me. I Jijn1t get it. He will be away

for a lengthy vacation.

Q. 'Who is Bob -- Bob's baby -- wr.lo is Bob? This

letter says Bob. A That's Babe. Thatlsmy jaughter. She

is pregnant and she is due.

Q This is frolE Evelyn, ien l t it -- uLove ll -- 1s

th~ Evelyn, what Joes that say, what is the signature on

that? Evvie, is that it? A Evv1e, is tha~ what it 1s1 I

donI t know.

Q It looks like it. But tha~ is your son's hand­

writing? A I assume it is. I jcn't know9

Q You know your son I s banjwl'l ti ng1 A I ~11n I t:

correspon~ very much wlth him.

~ that looks like it, doesn't it? A It looks like

Q You say you received that when? A Well, let me

see. Ab0U~ -- j1j I say last week? Yes, last week, Tuwsday

I got home anj openej the box and found this letter in there

Q. Do you know Eo.1 til Levi tov1 A Do I know Eji th

LevltDV! Yes,. too '6
1 sthe sister.
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Q Does she live with you people? A She lives wi~h

us f or a shor t whi Ie ·

Q Well, jij you go away w~th hex up to the country?
,

A Well, I jon t know whe ther I should answer tha t question

or not.

Q. I might sa ve time by telling you I aske:! your wii

the same quesciOn and she w6nt outiand consulte~ with her

attorney ao:i she came back and ans\';e:r:ed it after consulting

¥u th him. The answer is Camp Un! ty • Do es that r e11 eve yo~:

mind any? A All rigbt, if you want it that way.

Q Did you go to Camp Uoi ty wi. th your wifer A Yes,

I wa,S on vaoa tion at tha t time.

Q. And Edith Levitov was up there? A YefS.

~ While you were there you Jiscussed your son Morton,

:iidn't yOU! A I jon't know what you mean by jisoussed.

Q You discussed what he was 50ing in Mexico an:), th:,

fact the. t he vlas away,. jijn't you? A I :lon t t know what I

should say. How JO I know he was in Mexico! I couljn't

,iSCl1SB i:inytDing. I jijn't know where be was so I coul5.n 1 t

~'iscuss anytihing about Mexico or any 0 ther plaoe.

You ji5n t t knuw where he waST A No; of course n t ..

You sure you jij not know where he was!' A I am

sure I :1i j, not know where he was.

\cl. Were you told where he was? Di d anyone tell you

where he was? A NObojy j1j an~ I jijn't know.
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,,~ Was this the fi:6 t inji cation tbau you had that

he was in Mexico, when you got this letter? A I jo net

know whether this was the first. This is the only letter

I ever got from him 8in~e he was away.

Q, This was sent fro11" Mexi co? A I jo not know.

~ You got the envelope~ Mr. Sobell. Donlt be too

reluctant. A Wel~, I haven't got the envelope.

Q You reaj the envelope th~t i ~came in. Yousaw

there was a stamp on it. Was there a Unite18ta~es stamp on

it? A I don't remember.

Q You don't remember? A That's right.
is

Q. Di:i you look at it Y Here/yeux son tha t was away

for quite some time. You say you ji~ not know where he was.

The letter i tsalf Joesn t t inJ.icate where he was, but thexe
. I

is a stamp on the envelope and there s a postmark on there,

an:! here is a son that I sbeen away 1 you :10 not know where

he is, the let ter oomes in anj you do no~ take tih~ pains to

look at it? ~ No, I jij not.

Q For your infoxmatton, your wife tolj us the

letter was from Mexioo. You axe being a little too

reluctant. 1 realize you axe the father, but at the- same

time you are a oitizen of the Un1tejStates ana you are

bound GO answer any 4uestions which 50 not tenj to incrim1n-

ate you -- '.he answers to whioh jo nut; tenj to :.10 so. When

I ask you a simple question like thall, you even try to evatie

that:. t~ I am nut trying to evaje anything.
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Answer the questions truthfully_ I am not

interested in prosecuting yuu. You. a re in here as a wi tness

an5 a father. I have nothing agairn lj you. Butt, on the other

hand, if you are going to be reluctant aOJ yo~ are going to

insist upon refusing to cnswer questions -- G:n:l to me this

is a stujied refusal, this isn'1: just the average rerusal

to 2;.nswer beca us e you jo no t knew. You jo know the answel'S

to these questlons and you should answer. I am going to be

patient but not too patient.

answer.

A Well, I :len It knowt he

Q Did you j1S0US8 with your wife the fact that he

was in Mexicol A I jij not jisouss anything.

~ Dij you evex hear your wife say he was in

Mexioo? A No, I jij nut.

Q l?:hen the letter oame in, who rece1ve:1 the letter

01 j you receive 1 t;'? A I touk 1 t out of the box, yes ..

Q Diu you look a tit'? A I openej i ti up an:i I reafl

the le tller.

~ ~hat jij you say to your wife theq? A I showe1

her the le tter.

Q Dij yGU show her the envelope? A I j15 no~ show

her the envelope.

Q ViaS Edith Lev1tov there? A Maybe. 1 jo net !.,bin

Q Did you talk to her abou1i the Ie tilier? A Eo,S1:r,

1 jiB not.
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Q Did- you tell l:ar thai; you reoei vej a le'GteT' from

your son? A No, I ~1j not.

Q Why? A 'Why should I lialk to Edith Levitiov?

Q She livej with you, jijn't abe? A She :liin I t

live with us at the. fj time when I got the l:tt; ex.

~ Have you seen her sirr:e you got the leCter1

A

Q You haven· t seen her at all? A No.

Q Have you &Qlkeo Wi tih hex '( A No.

Q You hd.ve n t t talked with her at all? 1::. No, I

di:j not.

Q When is the last time ~ou paij your Jues for your

union? A I do not remember' when.

Q How long ago, a month, two months, three months!

I paid this month's dues.

~ This month's Jues? A Yes.

~ When jij you pay it! A I jo not remember when.

Q Was it after you reCeive3 this letter? A I jo not

reme'mber.

~ Dij your wife go jown with you when you p~j

your jues1 I Jon't remember.

Q Do you remember ever talking with Ej1th Levitov

Jown at the union heajquarters1 ~ Do I remember?

let, Yes. A Yes.

(", When was that'i A that was on Monjay."'t.

Ie(, Yes, a.nj yet you just sai:i tha" you never talked
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with her before. You jiscusse5this whole case A Just

take i t easy now. V;6.i t, just a minute. I got !i hlS le t~er

en Tues5ay after ~wo FBI men csme Jown anj accostej me where

I waS work1ng on the prescr1ption counter.

Q When was this? A That was on Tues~ay,

Tuesday about one o'clock.

Q. My :lear man, tnis says August gth on this

letter. A week ago last Tuesjay was the 22n:i of August.

A You can f1nd out when two FBI men wexe jown my place

where I worked an~ stooj in front of me anj inteIfered with

mY work.

~ That's wha t you sa.y. . A An:i then when I got hom

I haj that le t'Ger in 'the le'Glier box.

Q When j1d you talk w1th Ed1tb1 A Tha~ was MonBay.

Q Last Monj~y, wasn1t 1~? A Yes.

Q 11'hat: was toe 20th, was!' t it,1ol.ugust 20th"? A Yes,

a n:i the 1 et ter I go t Tuesday, Tues day, af ter 1 go t home from

woxk ..

Q You jifl what'! A The letlieT 1 got; the neXli jay

after I got home from work.

Q '.l.'he letter is aatei August 8th •. A I jo not know

about the ja'Ge, Mister.

Q How jij it come, was it an air mail le~~er?

A I jo net remember. I jun't think it was.

Q The letter is jatej August 8th; your conference

with Edith was on .ti.ugust 20th; ani you are telling me tb5i
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you got the letter on August 22nj. The conference with

Edi th was on August 21st, and you are telling me you got the:,

'l.'uesday.

( Oon t. by I FG)

Communist? n I refuse to answer that question.

A I am no~ lying.think you are telling a lie.

a Ie t t;ex ja tej August 8th. tha t you got on Augl.1st 22nj. It

woulj have been imppsSl ble to have sent the le'Gter .. How

wollla he senj 1 t? He was in custojy. He wasn I r. in Mexico

at the:ttlme at all. He was 1n Texas) in custo:Jy. So I

QAnd I roUS t reminti you tha ~ you are unj er oa th

an~ you are subject to the penalties of perjury. Are you a

letter Ao.gust 22nd? Iii Thai, I e right. I got it on Tuesfiay.

I am telling you I gov it when those two men saw me in the

store, anj whenever I got home. They accostej me and told

I shou15 tell them where Morton is. r told them I ji~ not

"--
Q I jo not want to remind you thao you are lying,

because yuu are. The letter coul~ not possibly have been

sent in th8u time because yourhu~banj was in custody.

arrestej last week. I am sorry, your son w81s arrested

week. But I do notice Yut/catch these 11 ttile mistakes in

very xea:1ily; you are quick to note them.. Your son

custody anj it 'WoLlld have been lmposs1ble for him to

£now, and when I got home I founj the le~ter.

Q 'You founj the letter on the 22nd? A That was



Louis
bitE 50be11

August 24, 1950

(Re: John Doe)
II
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Q On the grounds it may tend to incriminate you~

A Too tt s right.

Q Have you ever been affl11e.tea~\1'iththe Communis

Party" A The same ans'\.re r. ! will go out and a sk my ]a wye •

~ NO J you gave the answer, and I am not pressing

it. A Then if you are not pressing me, dontt ask me the

question.

THE FOREMAN: You answer the question here.

Q The only' answer" that you can give is tJ:"i...at you

refuse to answer on tre grounds it wi 11 tend to incriminate

you! A 'Jha t t S right.

Q, And, incidentally, Mr. Sobell, I wQuldntt sug-

gest that you get fresh vith this Jury. A I am not fres.; '"

Q Your attitude 18nf t very good at all. As tar

as I p;rsonally am concerned" that does not matter, what

you say; but as fe.r as the se jurors are conce-rned ~ it doe'

matter. These jurors are going to pass upon your testimo~ •

You cantt insult their intelligence, even though you think

you c.an. So plea.se at lEast be civil in your answers.

A I am civil. Look, mister., I have a blood pressure of

250, and I have a damaged ~art, and if you want to press

me any more go ahead and do 1 t.

~ I am not pressing you. A I am answering you

all I know.

'-t why did you de s troy the enve lope? A Not for
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any reason.

~D1d your wife or anyone else ask you where the

envelope was mailed from? A NoJnobody aske d.

MR. LANE: Mr. Foreman, will you excuse this

man until next Wednesday, one week. A week ago

yesterday - next \iednesdaYI you will return here,

at eleven o'clock.

THE FOREMAN: I want to ask you one question:

Why does it incriminate you to anSl\rer as to Wlether

or not you are a member of the Communist Pa.rty?

Are there any tenets in.the Communist Party that

make you think it 'Would be a c rime if you a.ns~rered

the question'"

THE \'1ITNESS: I don (t know ,how to ans't;-.rer that

THE FO:iEY'AN: You know pretty much about the

Communist rarty" and you know not to answer.

THE WITNESS: I suppose I do. You can't help

knowing it I by reading the papers and so on.

THE FOF:EMAl~: Supposing I a ske d you if you

were a Republican or a Democrat or a Socialist,

how would you ans~er that1

THE WI,!'NESS: The answer would have to be

the same II

THE FOP.EMAN: The same answer?
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Q You a~€ excused until next Wednesday, and you

are st 111 under subpoena. A All right.. May I go now?

Q Yes.

(WITl~ESS EXCUSED)
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A N H H • SID 0 R 0 V I C H) callej as a

witness, having first been july sworn by the

Foxem&n, tcstifiej ~s follows:-

BY MR. L}~NE:

You live in Olevel~njl

~ How uld are yoU! A 32 •

A Yes.

Q ~bere jij you 60 to school? A What school?

Q I mean any school.. Yihat is your ejucation,

high school anj college? A Graje schclol, high sohool __

:bxaje school in New Haven, vonn., highschool in ]~ew Haven,

Oonn. Some college in Clevelhnj.

Q What college? A Cleveland Oollege; some night

courses there.

~ ~hen were you maxriej1 A 1941.

Q bnd to whom?' A Mioha.el Sijorovich.

i~ You h.a ve a 01111j1 A Yes.

How 01:1 is she! lSi; months.

~ Born when? A May 9, 1949.

let You are marriej to Michael 81jorovich? .A Yes.

? H' I"'i t~ har; :ioes. Mike jo. l\ e B a jl~af tsman.

~ Whom joes he work for? A GaB Machinery Oompany

in Ole -uelanj.

Q ~i hat 50 Be he make f or a sa lary? A $275 a mon th

base salary, ctnj then there's ajjitional.

~ Do you work at al11 ANo, not right now.
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Haj you workej prior to the birth of your chilj? i

1:. Yes, I ha:l.

Q there 1id .you work? A Linjner Coy, Cle\slanj.

Q '/~'ha t is tha t 'r A Specialty shop, jepartmenti

store.

Q What jij you j01 A Sales personanj then

assistamt buyer.

Q Did you work in New YorkUi ty at all at any time

A Yes, I jij. I workej ,in clothing factories, as a main ­

~ You worked where? A 1 worke~ as a maij first

and then in the clothing factory--

Q As a maid? You meanhousema1d? A Yes.

Q Whom jij you work for? A Some people callej
---::J'

Toomarkin.

Where jo they 11 ve? A I think it was Washington

Heights, New York.

Q Whauis their name? Spell it. A T-o-o-m-a-k-k- ~~

Where jo they live in Washington Heights? A It

waS a street that wasn't calleJ a street but a Place. I do

not remember the name-

.~ Some Place in' Washington Heights? A Yes-

~ When ji j you Vii ork there f A ',l'he firs t year I came

to New york, anj that w~s in 1939, I believe.

Q I ~s8ume you were boxn in New Haven, 16 than

I correot? A Yes-

~~r---------
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~ When 5ij you meet; Mike? A When 1 went to New Yo.

~ 19391 A Well, it might not have been 139; it

may not have been until '40.

Around '39 ~r '401 Yes.

Q You knew him for about fi ve or six years before

you mal'riedhim? n. Nc, I knew him for we were married

in '41 just several mon the or a yeax a t the ·mos t.

Q You bought a plGce here in New York, -;jidn't you?'

A Yes, in Ohappaqua-

Q ·What :lid yoU pay for it? A I think it was $2500.

Q .And jij you finance it t'hrough some bank? A No,

When jid you purchase it?

spri ng of 14-2, I think, or '1+3.

A I t WeB the very ea1'-

it was finanoed throu.gh the previous owners.

Their name was Felgenhauer.

"Q They livej in this house? A Yes, before we

Q Who were they? A They tbok a mortgage on it.

A . F-e-l-g-e-n-h-a-u-e-r .

Yes.

SpeJ.l it.

~ Where were they located? A They lived in

Ch.appaqua •

Q Do they live th~r=:e now? A ]10, I jon I tknow

anj ~he general surrounjings outsiJe the house up at

II purChase: i:o am going to show you some pictures ani ask you

if you OCtO ijentify tnese pictures as pictures of the

I
I,

Chappaqua. A
I
~~---
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Q Do you recognize it? A Yes.

Q flhere1s the aquejuct? b Tha~t8 1t.

Q Those are the hyjro-electric stanchions that are

up there? A Yes.

~ Do y~u recogGize them! A YeS, jefinitely. The

pictures are jefinitely the bous~. Some of them leak a

little 5ifferent now.

MR. L.;\NE: May the recor:r in11cs.te that

Mrs. Si1oroviCh hb..S 1Jent1fie3 the house E',n:3 !ite

surroun:tings ·

Q Do you, recctll when you receivej the jeeu to the

place? A Well, I jonft know whe~her -- no, I jon1t. I jonft

knGw whe ther we ever go t a j ee j beca use it was s or t of a

tenant contr&ct thing. t,e were just paying monthly-

Q You eventually receivej a jeej to it! A A fleed

bO it, yes. I do not remember. I remember a search

mane. We got \'ha~. I 50 not remember when we got the jeed

Q I have here a cert1fle3 copy of the jeej.

see, that's January 19th, 1945 -- jo you seer A Yes.

~ Mike 8t:iOIov1ch resijing at 10 Monroe Street,

New York City, an5 Rose Mar~ln and Mil~red Maxt1n, resijing

at 106 A Those are the people whom we sold it to.

~ I see. Do you x0c&11 when YOQ gave that :iee~?

A This is 0 jeej?

Q Yes, that is a certified copy or a photostatio

copy. You see, 1 am pointing to the sign~ture. Do you
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r-'

"\.
This is the jeed which you gave at the time you

solj the place? A Yes-

Q, Wer e you in New York a t that t1me? A When we

solt1 the place?

Q Yes. A No, we were in Uhappaqua.

Q Were you in New York vi twat the time that you

sold tbe place or were you 11ving at Ohappaqua Y A We were

living at Chappaqua then.

Q Do you own an au tomob11e? fA Yes, we do.

Q What kim is i ti1 A Studebaker ..

.~ What year? A 1941.

Q ~Vhen j1 d you pUI'Chase it? A I think it was

""'ugus t of 1948, just before we wen t on a vaoat1 n.

Q How muchji~ you pay for'it? A Around eight

I~ Dc you know where you purohased 1 ti? A In Olevelnd

Q How di5 you happen to purchase i~? Whom 11j yca

purchase it "from? A A private person. We saw an ad in

the paper I think.

Q You saw an ad in what paper? WaS it the Plain

Dealer? A I cQuljntt tell you what paper it was. We were

looking in all papers.

~ At ~he time you purchasej the automobile you say

you lookej in a lot of phpers, you ~ere looking for a car,

you looke:i fortha 'rvant AjS, a:ls for automobiles,. seconj-

hanj oars, £:'ina 1 suspect that you probably lookej at severa



a car from other people! ~ I think we went around J1ffer0n
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cars before you pickej this one out.

for a long tlIDe, yes.

Dij you see othe~ people

Ann Si:iorovtch

A We ere looking

-- j1j you try to pure

places. i,T:e went to c) 101; of parking lots anj things like

thal,;·

Do you remember some of ,them'! A I c&ntt tell yo

Q Do yuu remember any nf.::.mes£ 11 No-

None at all? A No.

Q None at hl11 A No.

;~ NOli a single one! fi 'All I Can think of 1s the

Smiling lr1shman, b..nd we jijuot go to bim.

,Q, Dc you :remember any tha tyou went to? A No.

lV,one :i tall? h" No, I cantt think of their name.

Who was with you when you wen'G arounjto look

at these cars, jij you take youj husbanj? A Mike anj I

generally.

~ Yes, ~nj who else sometimes? A No one tha~ I can

th1nk of.

~
'i·bat"! b No one that; I can think of .

~ No one that yO[1 can thi nk of? [; No,... I jo not qu t~

understanj your question.

'~ You be1ng 6 er1 oue now or are you trying to be

funny? £ No, I ~m no~ trying to be funny.

~ BeCbuse at this ;iW6, ~fter tha~ answer, I must
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reminj you tha ti yuu a. re testlfylng unjer ·08 the A Yes.

Q, Anj you are sUbject to tLH; penalties of peTjury

if yeu tell a lie. Now, think hbrj. You SaW that man out

there in tbe anteroom, jijn l t you? A I saw sei~ral people,

yes.

~ D~j yeu 6ver see him oefore? ~ Khich one are yo

talking about?

Q That l s Mr- P~leger whom you 'bought the Car from.

E:. Wbich one was tha t"i

Q The man sitting OUv there on the left hanj slne.

A Righu close to us?

r'i. Yes A He I s the man we bought; the car from?Iq;; .
Q Yes, he I s the man you bought; the car fr om,

Robert Pfleger. I d1jn ' t recognize him.

Does he look jiffereou? A 1 ji jn 1 t recognize hi' ".,

~ He recognizeU your A Dij he?

Q Yes. A 1 aID afI'~1~ I jij not recognize him.

~ Th.ink hard now &nj ge'S your thoughts toger,:her,

000" use this is impor'Gant, no neej fol' you to be hi~ing

anything. No.

, (

~ vO I j0D 1 t waQ~ to brinG ~wo or three people in

here wh(,1 v'Iere present -- Viiho nl,:;.y not: be Tight Cin the spot,

!jake place. 1 j\, n' t w&n t you to S UJ jenly remember tha'~ you

werr:::n 1 t there or tha t certain people vieren' t there wi th you.~
)

~ We purchased a oar, there 1s no jeny1ng that.
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Q No question abcut that? A Not at all.

and someone else was there. Now, what I want to know, I

you to tell me in your own worjs who else was there with

A When we purch~sej tne car w~s 20meone with us?

~ Yes. Tell me what happene3 the jay you went to

get the cc..r'? .8. Wel1 1 we lL.USr. have !'e&j the afi in the paper

I think it was a jay when M.ike was nor:. wOl~king bec'::tuse we

jecifleti to go out: anj see it. I think rt,e called fil'St to ft ..

the pri ce wa~. I ~ f •
)un t know ~hether the aj IDentio~ed

price in ~he newsp~per or not. Anj the! we wen~ out to see

it.

~ What happenerl when you got there, whom jlj you

see, the owner! .h Yes. r tnink this fellow was s taniing

righ t in the dri veway, righ t next to the car.

~ I t wets a private home, wa,sn t t 1 t? A Yes, 1 twas

a pI-i va t.i e hOLne.

Q. Dijn l t you get into "Ghe car anj tTy it out?

Dijn (t he take you for a little ritle in it? A Yes, I think

we ji j.

~ as ~ matter uf fact there is no question about

it. A Yes.

Xl"macLinery, we opened up the hooj, unfl lookej at the

Q Yc:u triej it uut ani c&me back. 11'hen what happe 01':

You j ijn 1 buy 1 t right away, ji fl you? A We looke:J a. t thet.

1 remember; it w~s a liur.le sh~bby.
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Who was with you at that time? A Well, this man

~~s there anj I was there anjMike was there.

Q ias he the only one -- just those three? A I

can l t :remember anyone else being there. Thel~e were 60::.6

people in the back yarj. 'he sat:) hello to them when we

pa.i::l the lYiOney \for the car.

"''''' V~b.o was in thebQ.c£ yo.xj?A I :10 not remember

exactly. Ithink theI's were several women. There might;

na va been a chilj. ~nj I ttlink ther;.;' was an el:Ierly

ge nt 1 ernan , I am no t 8 ur e •

f
lei... Di :In' t you leave 8.uj come back l>efore you bought

the car that j~yl You jijnlt. buy ilj right away. YOLl went
~_. :l'

anj saw 8011>6 other cars in the meantime an:Ioame tack in

about two hDurs E;tnj then you bought ~he Car, je you recall

l- ha '£iT r.. We j,i j see several 0 theI' cars. I jon't remembel'

whether it w~s that jay or not.

Q That wasn 1 ~ so very long ago. About a year ago,

wasn't it -- tWG years ~go? fA. Twc years.

I.i Don I t you remt;mbeI' thos e even ts '( You shoul:!.'

The ,jay you bought the car, What happenej, who was with you

1l15. anyone vex go t1TOunj wi th you an:! your nt:lsbanj to look

EffBx ever go aruunj with yoU! A No, no one went &rounj wit

TO LLT'l':! wi t h you, or ji:1. theyor jij yOll ask .~~nybojy to go

at these cars to help yuu 5e aide v.r·hether you shaul:! buy ,~he, ,

us when I was with ~ichQel. I think there may have been

someone with Michael when he went severbl times.

-------t--------Q:::-'_,_',h_o_'_._j_c--=-y_o_u_s_u-::p:...:p~o_'s_e, WaS wi th ~iml A I :1.0,,"_UM...loo!.Q..wt.-...Q".l.I-I../...q...._
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Wha~ boys, their n~mes? A I jo not know.

saY names because I J(j nut knew who j1:1.

Q Mxs. S1dorov1ch, you are bein~ very very

I can t •

Q Look, you are eithe! going to cooperate or you

are not going to ccopera te, hn:1 I think YOll know wha ~ I am

talking about, 50 let 1 s get jown to brass taoks ~on:j start

oooperating. I am not going to stand for this too long. Yu

tell what you know about this. t'J. 1 am telling you.

Q, You axe noti telling everyt.,ing because I am going

to bring people in to prove you are not telling everything.

You are going to 11a.vc a chanoe tio tell the truth now, or

else. Have you talkej to anpone sinee you 1'eoe1 ved the

subpoena? A We visl te~ one or two people on ,the way into

New York. ~e JIOve.

Q Whom jid you visit? A We stopped at my brother';

place in Pi ttsbuxgb..

VJha t t 8 his name'r A Michael Ranus1ak.

~ Where joes be live? ~ In P1ttsburg~.

~ Yes, I know. Whatls the ajjress? A 509 Nobles­

town Road.

~ When jij you stop at his place? A Late evening

'.11e 1Nantej to break our trip up.

~ What jay? A It was l~st night -- no, night befQ e

last.
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you tell nim wfipr you were coming

A Yes, we :ii:i ..

~ What dii you tell him? A We said we haj a

subpoena to come in to tbe grand jury because we knew these

p i2ople, Rosenberg an:i Greenglass" \\e thoughi 1 t was in

reference to the espionage trials.

IWhat s that? A International WorkersQ IWQ?

lenj jown there.

~ ~ha~ jij be say, if anything? A Well, he told

~Vihaii :ioes he :101 A He works for the IWO"

they weren I t there, so we vis1 tej the Markow! tzes j they

a permanen t heme there.

~ The Maxkow1tzes'-t Who are they? What1s the fl'

name? A Simon, I believe.

Q Viihtt t joes he JO'? A I jon t t know.

Q Whom joea he work for? a I jontt know.

~ Bow long have you know n him? A We met them

onee or twice when we purchased that part10ular traot of

an insurance group; they sell insurance.

Q Whom else jij you8ee since yougot the spbpoena?

A Well, then we rotia down to Frenchtown. We ha1.re OUI'

home'-- sumrr~r cottage there. We trrought out parents

be thiere at tr.l.is time. We stoppe:i thereto see tnem.u€

not to worry abou~ it.

Q. Frenchtown, is that in .P1titsbtlrghl A No, 1ti::s

New Jersey.

Frenchtown, N. J.1 A That I s right.
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Q Where is itloc~ted? A EighT; on the Delaware

Hiver across from Bucks County.

~ What large city is it near? A Flemington! thin

is clo.se by.

Q m15 you tell him what you were coming to New York

for? A No, we jij not.

~ You jij not jiscuss it at all? A No.

Q have you t~lk~j to a la~yer since the FBI talked

to you in Ulevel~nj? A No, not at all.

Q Have you talked to the Rosenbergs ox any of

their representatives? A No-

~ Do you recognize that picture? A No.

Do yuu know william Perlmutier?

~ Do you know ~illictm Ferl? A No.

A No-

;~ Let me get that straight again. The wi tness has

been srlown a piC ture uf WilliCim Perl, ~lso known ;[:.8 'William

Perlmutter, bnj tbe witness h~s jeniej tha~ she has ever se

that 11lb.n, is that corrBo'G! A Not that: lever know of, yes.

I saw him in pictures ;;ha:; the FBI showetl me.

~But you do not know the man? b No-

~ You never talkej with the man? A No.

Q Did thisman accompan~ you when you purchasej the

car from Mr. Pfleger? A No, I woul~ say no.

Q You say positively he jij not? A I wouln say

so, yes.

Q Did anyboJY

_______~_p.-u-r-c-h-a-.-s-e-d-t-h-e--c-a-r-.-f-r-o-m-a__coo_.m_~~~~~:~~~_..
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MR. LANE: Mr- Foreman, wou11 you excuse

Mrs. S1jorov1Ch temporarily anj aimonish her not to

talk to anyone until she appears here again th1s

morning'?

THE FOREMAN: Dij you hear what Mr. Lane said

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE FOREMAN: You are temporarily excused

and you are not to talk to anybody.

THE WITNESS: All rlght.

(WITNESS EXCUSED)
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ROBERT

Pfleger

. g. P F LEG E R, calle1 as a witness.

having first been july sworn by the Foremen, testified

a.S fallows:-

BY MF'. L .;.NE :

Mr- Pfleger, what is your business'? A I 8.111 in

the ad"trertlsing business. r :~m an Account E.xecutive for

Meljrll.nl &: Fawsmi tb Aj,verti sing Agenoy in Cleveland iI

Q You resije at 4202 -- ~ 5202.

"'" Albext1y Ave., Ohio? A Yes. It is Palmer, Ohio.

~ Do you h8ve a telephone number tberer A Yes.

r\ In the early pa.~ rt of July of 1949 you owned a..,.,1,..... .-

S tude baker car? 'flh •p. J. at s corTec't.

Q What mojel was it? A It was a 1941 club coupe.

~ Champion, wasn't it? A Champion, yes,sir.

Q Dij you h~ve oocasion to advertise for the

of selling that car? A I jij.

Q WhaL jij you jo with respect to the ajvertis

;1 Do yOD mean ,;;;here ji:i I insert it?

That's right. A There were two ads inserte~.

One was in the Olevelanj Press anj a later oj in the

Ole vel-.:n j Plai n· Des.l er iI

Dc you rec~ll ~~prDxim&tely the time that you

pla,ceo. tbose ade in the newSpapers? fA I caL I t swear to the

exact jates; thdy were approxiwet81y these: the ad in the

of July-
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Now jij you receive a visit -- !will with1raw

that. Did. you eventually sell the c&r? A Yes,sir" Itl:l:i.

Will YOQ tell the jury the events tl~t led up

to your selling the car? A Yes, sir. The car was ajvertised

telephone, several :oeople to see it, s.nj I 801:1 it to one

of ttl€:se l],rties. One -- io you wan t me to /50 into all of

je ls1
-- IQ ~hat s rignt. A I sold the car to a man by the

name of Sidorovich. Tho~e people oame -- the came in a

l~rty of three. There was a man whom I later learned his

n arne was Perl al ttlOUgt~ I :i1 d not' Ie ax n hi s name at tha t

partioular time, Eia:! Mr. an:i Mrs. °ijorovioh. There was a~
;

peculiar CirCUillstance at r.he time of the man whom I now knova

by the name of Perl" c&me in anj lookej at the car, an1 I

assumed he was tbe prospect; Mr. an::l Mrs. S1jorovich seemed

to stay in the tackgrounj. He examined r;be car, nj this

man Perl drove it arounj 't;he block ,::.nj he seemed to be the

man that knew the most about an automobile nj seeme1 to me

to be the pros})ect. For instc.nc€, Mr.-:nj Mrs. 81:9orov1ch

rO::le in the back sea t of t.tl~ car.

~ Did you rije in the seat with him, the front seat?

A Yes.

Q Anj this man Perl jrove tbe oar, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Dij he have some talk about automobiles with you?
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A He seemedto know a great deal about an automobile, ~:nd

I jo not know a great jeal bout them, anj I commente:J on

tha t fact 8.t tha lJ time, anj obviously in two years some o~

t;hes e thi ngs b.re jus t a Ii Ii tIe bi t vague, a.n:1 as I

he s~": 1d S (Are tb i ng, If I jcn I t i:now ~l grea t jeal about aut

engl n,:,: 6; I know some thing abo uti airplane engi nes . tl

q \111 you describe this man Perl'? tA He stall,

be.s bushy 5al'k hair, rather his features, I would say, were

rather angular and sl!.arp, jark; walked just, a litl:;le bit

s~ooped.

~ Abouu six feet? A Ilj say he was six feet or a

little bit over six feet.

c:~ Have Y'ou Been bim recently? A Yes, sir.

Q ~hen jij you see him? A I have seen him on two

ocoasions 10 the last two w'"Jeeks. A week ago this Tuesday

Special Investigauor Fernandez from the FBI took me out to

the NA CA Labora tori es in 01 evelanj a nj I 0 ts erve:i tili s man

entering his car anj then i5entifiejhim as the man who

scccmpanied the Sijoroviches. Dij you want me to tell when

I saw him la tel"'c

Q Yes. h Then I saw bim again this week with a

Speci21 Inv'::::s tigator~ .Meeth, from the FBI. At that time we

passed him several times in his ~utomobile &nj we saw him

also as be entered hiscaT at the NA,OA La.boratories ;:~galn ..

~ Do you recall Whab the price was? Al gt:750
'f(' •

Q How :11 j they pay it'r A *~lOO on the jay tha t they
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agreed to bUy the car) which wa.s the Sun1ai I spoke of

earlier, ~nd $650 on the jay of transfer.

A Yes, sir.

Were you going to keep the car for a while? I
!
l

The agreement was that Mr· Sijorovich agreed to I
Howevex, I was awat1ng je11very of abuy

new

tL1e automobile.

car, and because

,

!
I Ii ved iDa sectton where an automobiJ!e

i
is neces.sary:, I ma:ie -- we agreed, mutua.lly::~greej, that I

coul:l have the use of the car until I receiveti ~je11v€ry of

A Mr. an:1 lvirs.

A I

presen~ at tha~ time?

then the deal would be callej off.

was

Bho jrew that agreement up?

Di d yuu sign any pbpers? i\ YeS J sir.

hhO

that,

Q

0'8 ve me t:100.
o "

81 :lo:r- ovi ch.

the new car.

time he

not get

I
I

Q Di:J he gi ve you a jepos1 tat that time'? A At that !

I
Ie :1rew up !

I
an greement restricting me from selling the oar to any othtr

person, 1::10j that the only way tha t the jeal oould be canoelief'
r

would be if the jellvery of the new caT waulj fail, or I ji1
\

I

I
I
I
I

I

not.

the

'<t 1-'aS Perl present at tlJE~t cJ.!'r.:e? .Pi No, sir; he was I

I
j

!
!

tIles that jr-:-.wn on -;:;h-. Sf.;;.me :lay that he Durch2_se:3!, ' . i
j

carr' f:.

Q Where was this 5rawnT A Moet of the transaction I
!

!
took;:place in the jriveway of my borne, the caT was p:a.rked

out here, .:;.nj when I oa.me back the eituatj.on seemed to

_.".~_.__._..__+~evexs e i ~.se~;f !~. __.f_~rJ.._-d.x..QPpaj-..in4~trb-e---eaekgxOUrd7-ne ._----.+_



LB-5 Pfleger

S:i. Joroviches tftel1 t-ecame the prospect. Ther e WaB Fome

bickering over the price anj I fin~11y ~gxee~ to sell the

request of the S1dorovhches I jrew up this agreement.

(Cont. by ED)



1,
iI,·~

RelLE

8/30/50

Q Was there anybody else present besides the Sidorovi s'

A .No, sir.

Q W~at did they want to give you originally for the

car'? A Well, I

Q What was their 0 ff'er? A 'I1heir offer was $750. I

wan ted ~825.

G You ha.d som e al'gument there at the time? A Some

oi scussion '(

Q A discussion. A No, sir.

Q Not at all. Now, y01;.l say they came there in the

morning; 1s that right'? A No. They carne there in the

afternoon.

'i. About wha t time? A 1 would estimate the time at

about 2 or 2:30 in the afternoon, or it might have been a

little bit later than that, and returned within about an

Q And you say they drove up in a car'"? A Yes, sir.

~ Who was driving that car? A Mr. Perl.

Q What kind of a car was it? A As I recollect it, I

believe that it was e Chevolet of a somewhat earlier model.

I thought it was about a '36, a '38; along in there.

~ What color? A. It seemed to me it was either a dark

\
\ blue # dark green the car was in pretty shabby shape.

Q ''Nas it a two-door J i'our-door;'", A I t was a sedan.

I can't say wi th any certainty 'whether it Vias a two-door or

four-door.

,<, Now I after they tri ed. the car out a.nd took it around
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the block did they buy it immediately or did they leave?

A No} sir; they left~ and gave me no indication whether

they WOQld buy the car or not, with some kind of remark,

nWe!l..l th.ink it over. fI And of course several other people

done the same thing and I just let it pass at that time.

Tney returned I would say in an hour or a little bit less.

All of this transpired between our noon-day meal and the

evenin € meal.

Q. Now, were the members of your family cut in your be.

yard f'? A Yes I sir.

Q Ana they returned, you say" within an hour? A Yes"

Q ~OWj &t the ti~e they left did they say they were

going to look over some othercars? A They didn't tell me

what they were going to do.

Q And had they dickered over ~~e price before they

left? A No, sir.

Q They hadnft talked price? A No, sir.

Q But they said they would return, did theye? A Yes.

(\ rid the:.r ask you to hold the car? A No, sir."-t

Q. Did they ask you about the price? A No.

Q They didn't ask you about the price? A No. It

developed later in the conversation. The car was advertised

wi thou;; a pri ce a.nd tha.t' s one of the reasons they asked

t~e $750 price. I had quoted a ~750 price over the te

and after several other people had looked at the car they

seemed to think it was \'IIorth eight hundred a.nd a. quarter,
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VJri tten.

hela for them and to protect them.

«-~««««<--<- <-«~~-<-r~-

so when he came I asked that much money and he held me to !
the price that I quoted over the telephone.

,
Q Lid his wife enter into the discussions very much? I

A Except in the drawing up of tne con tract. I
I

(~ ~ihat did she do in that? A Oh, she suggested s6veratl.
I

things the. t should be put in to it, oh, how the car should be 1

I
I
i
i

G Was the a.greemen t typed 0 r was it -- A I twas hand-!
!
1
i

Q And did you make a duplicate? A No, sir, I didn't.

Q And you gave them the agreement? A Yes, sir.

Q Did they ever gi ve it back to you?
£

A I t was de s troybd,
~
~

If I remember correctly, it was (lestroyed the p.ay we made

the transfer.

Q Did your w1fe see these people at all or any members

of your fa.mily~i' A In the last couple of weeks we have

tried to find ou t if my wife could remember any of the sa

people. She did remember Mr .Sidorovich. She could not

identify!V[rs. Sldorovich ~d she could not ident1~y Mr. Perl.1
i

Q Do you hav~ a small child: A Yes, sir.

Q The- reason I asked that is, there was some -- there ,
r

was something said by Mrs. Sidorovich the t she recalled haVin~
~

waived goodbye and she saw several people in your backya.rd, !
I

inclUding s. small child. A 'Nell, my mother and father-ln-laF-'

that's right, my baby was out there, and my mother-in-law an~

,fa.ther-in-law, in the back yard. I
,-,,-,-,,<~<~,--'<--~._~~--<~_.._..--1-~

I
I



Q How Old was the child?

three years old. ne is five now.

1
,,, __-..;_o._~._•. __.;._~_,~

Thfj ch il.d a. t that time was I

Queed me.

Q Now, is there anything else you can recall, Mr.Pfleger,
I

about the entire proceeding~ Ii That t s all that I can rememb~r
]

Q, And when cid the} make the final paymen t on the car?

A On tLe da.)" 0 f the tran sfer J whi eh V'~a.s July 22.

Q &~d what havpened on t~at oay? AI met only

~r. B1dorovich at the County Recorderts office. I had the

bill of sale from my car v~h1c.t1 I turned over and he turned

over the balance of the money.

Q And at the time that you met the Siuoroviches, that

is J when they came to your house to purchase thacer, dl d

Sidorovich introduce these other two people to you?

A No, he did not; -because in the begirming it looked as

though Perl was the pur chaser ana not until we v;ent into the

house to dra.w up the agreemen t did I learn any of their namesl
I

and that rtr. and Mrs. Sidorovich, a.nd he then of cour~se int;'ol-
I
i

Q Now, I have a photograph of William Perl. Is that t9~
:

man that you have identified? Yes, sir.

Q
I

And is tha.t your signature on the 'back'? A Yes, sir.l
I
{

MR. LANE: May the record innicate that the witnesd

has identified William Perl.

Well, now, Mr. Foreman, I think that's about all
1

I ha ve to ask ::itr. Pfleger. I f you or any cbf the Jurors I

have --
~

-------~--_t-

I



BY THE JURY:

Q Just the one question: whether or not when you

'identified ferl last week he had the same car in which he

drove up to your house? A N0 ~ sir. lie has- - he is now

driving a new Dodge.

Q Did Perl go into your house when the agreement was

dl"awn up? A tio, sir. Perl remained on the side yard.

BY MR. LANE:

Q Did Perl tell you where he was working at that time?

A No, 51 r, he dian' t •

Q. Did Sldorovich tell you? A I don I t believe h.e told.

me where he worked. But he did te1.1 me a t the time or some-

where a,long the line 1 got the impre Bsion that he was a drafts-

man.

Q At tha.t time? Or 1s it something you learned' since

then thrcu&~ the FBI? A I have sin cs learned where he

dr2ftsman, and they have never told me whether he is or he

ian t t.

Q At the time you saw Mr. Perl was he wearing a hat?

A No. It was in the summer time, warm weather, JUly, and

they '{~er'e cresse6. ver'S informally. Nei ttJ.er of' the men had

coats and did ~ot have hats.

THE F'GREMAN: I f there are no fur ther questions,
, you may be excused. And thank you very mu ch, Mr. Pflegerl,

---'-~~---~-~'-~-r-~-----"--roryou:r-te--stThony--'-~--'---'--' ,
I [WITNESS EXCUSED] I

---------



us v. John Doe
August 30, 1950
Presented by Myles J. Lane, Esq.

bd 1 Sidorovlch

MICHAEL SID 0 R 0 V I C H, called as a wi tness,

having first been dul'j'r sworn by the Foreman, testified

as fo 110lJl s :

BY MR. LANE:

Q Your full name? A Michael Sidorovich.

I believe I started working for t~em in about July or

Gas Machinery Company.A

Base salary of two seventy-five a

Draftsman •

Cleveland.

A

A

j

A Oh, I worked for tne Gafford Corporatiop,

A Cleveland; business brokers.

A

Cleveland?

ClevelBnd?

How long?

Occupation?

Whom do you work fo r?

What salary?

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

August of 1949.

Company.

Q 1950? A This year.

Q, And before that whom did you work for? A Before

worked for the Gafford Corporation.

!i
Q Your address'~' A 8706 Carnegie Avenue, Cleveland,Ohib.

Ii
ii
i

;1

~
:1
;1

!i

Q HOYl long do you work there? .A Since the la.tter part!!
II
~

~
II
j
:1
;1

11

!I

Q Whom did you work for before that? A Bower Surveys ~

tl

:1

~
'i
u

Q. .l..iuring·. wha t period of time? Ten weeks. I don't 1\A ~

recall exactly. I got a' statement from him. I know it was -L
.~
i1

Q W"ell, approximately what time, what mOIl ths? A I

think April, May and June.

o.f June.

month.
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Q, As a dra.ftsma.n? A No.

Q As what? A As a licensed real estate salesman.

Q And what ,,-as your remunera tion for tha.t job?

A Strictly on a commission basis.

Q Well, what did you make, on the average, a year?

A Oh, I believe I did around $1500.

Q $1500 a year. Is that all? A Well, I wasn't with

them a full year.

Q -You were with them ten months, weren't you?

A About ten months.

Q Well, what did you live on during that time?

A Wel~, I had to live on whatever money I had put aside

before that.

Q How much was that? A Well, we had bonds and my

mother sent us aome money and my wife mana.ged the money and

1- don f t know exa.ctly how mllch we had, I mean in round figure ;

in round fi gure a I coulan t t tell you.

Q Wall, rougnly, in round figures what aid you ns.ve,

altogetber, counting the bonds and the money your mother

sen t you? A Oh, POS sibl J three thousand, maybe more.

Q How much did you have in the way of bonds?

A I don't recall.

Q Roughly. A I can't .. I couldn't say.

Q Give me an approximation'. A l. couldn't give you an

approximation because I don't recall how much I had.

Q You don't know how ma.ny bonds you had'~' A That' B
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Q Didn't you look at them? A I looked at them, but

I didn't count them.

Q That's a little unusual. What did you do before

that? A Before what?

Q Before you worked for this real estate company?

A Before that I tried selling furnaces.

Q For whom? A There was a furnace company -- I wasn't

wi th them lon.g. I be lieve I was with t:n-mm for about a week

or so and I collected no compensation.

Q And prior to that whom did you work for? A Prior

to that I worked' for tt.A.6 Tucker Industries.

Q Cleveland? A Cleveland.

Q What period of time? A From about the middle of

to about Tha.nksgiving of t 48.

Q As s. draft sroan ? A As a draft aman.

Q And what did you get for a remuneration there?'

A Well, it varied, but my average -- but my base rate was

$2.10 an hour.

Q Well, what was the average? A I believe I did be

than $90 a week.

Q Did your wife work at that time? A My wife worked

at tha t time.

Q Wha,t was she making? A Well, she WB,S getting, I

think -- as 1 recall, she was making about $35 a week.

Q Whom was she working for? A The Lindner Company

of Cleveland.
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~

~ How old are you now? A Well, I have to figure that-~
!

Q Do you want my pencil? A Thirty-four.

Q Were you in the service? A No.

Q Why? A I was deferred.

Q Vlhy? A 4-F.

Q, Well, I know; but VJha. t' s the reason? A Eyes.

Q Did you have a punctured ear, or wnat? A My eyes.

That's r~ght.

I believe it was

I do.

A

A

A

It's a '41 studebaker.

A .Not recently.'

A

I saw him today.A

The name I don't recall.AFrom whom?

But you have looked at it?

What is it, what year?

What was your Draft Board?

Do you own an automobile?

Did you ever look 8.t it?

Q

Q

Q

Q

Q

Have you seen him today?

- \1

l!

number 11 or number 12, down on Astor Place, here in New York~

i
~
~

I
Q When did you purchase it? A In the summer of 148. I

~
R

11

Q You got a bill of sale, didn't you? A That's right.~
!I
il'

1
il
jl

!
Q Do you recognize the man that you purchased it from? I

~
~
~

Q Robert Pfleger; tha.trs his name. A I don't recall il

the name.

Q Now, when did you decide to buy this car? A The

Ida.y I saw it.

Q The day you saw it, yes; but when did you decide to

; buy a car~' A Well, I had been looking during the summer of
i

: t 48 for B. ca.r, I wanted to purchase a car. I had pu t ia a

~ bid for a new car for some time since an d I hadn't heard
'\
;j

",_,=","",-".",".:.=<=-,~. ""..~"""z~~",~_,,,_~,,"_.-,._~,,~ ,~=",,"c, ... ,-,.=..-_ ,1c>. ~..r.~">~"-"' c." -.·,.cc,.·.····

;



go down, although I called him on several occasions. I

I spoke to whoever was in charge there and he saia they.

were all filled up, all their orders -- all their cars were

'I
i1

11

:i
:1

!i
I!
:1

i
,I
J
I

:1

il
:1

i
I
'I
1
i

,i

J
il

I dian' ti
·1

Sidorovlcb

Q And whom did you deal wi th ,there? A Yvell; I spoke

Q You pu t an order in then for & car? A Yes.

Q '46? A Yes.

Q ~when was this? A Oh, this was I think in t 46.

Q What kind of a ca.r?' A A studeba.ker •

bd 5

to Mr. Erdlac himself.

And he sent me -~ once or twice he sent me an invitation to

Q A new one? A A new one.

Q And then what happened? A Well, then he wouldn't

take any deposit. he said he would just keep me in mind.

come down and look at new cars that Vllsre in, just as til --

this was before they moved to the quarters they now occupy.

Q Where are they now? A Now they are on Broadway. 1
:1

Q The same place? A No. They are on Broadway now. ;,
I

Q Where were they before? A Before, they were some- I
ilplace on 79th Stl"leet. I don't recall the location. 'I
Ii

anything from the dealer with whom I had put in the order.

l Who is the dealer? A I believe it was Cole Motors.

that were just on display, to keep up my interest.

called him once or tYiice and I couldn't get to speak to him

Q Cole Motors in Cleveland? A Not Cole. It was ErQl~C.

Q And where are they located in Cleveland? A They ar~

located on Broadway. And when I put my order in they has
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on order and they couldn't promise me anJl'thing a t all. And

I believe I went down to Cole Motors and spoke to them, too,

and they were bUsy too. So tha,t when I -- in '48 I got 018­

gustea waiting and I also figured that the market might drop

down and I might be able to get a car without too much wait­

ing, and, well, nothing happened and when nothing happened

I started looking around used cars and so I answered many

ads and maOe many telephone calls and inspected many used

car lot s, l'ooking for a. car.

Q Well, what used car lots did you visit? A Specifi­

cally, I c~uldn't give you the names, because

Q Well, you must remember some of them. A You could

walk down Euclid Avenue not far fr~n whare I live and you

could find one, two miles, you could find five or six

used car lots.

Q Well, what were some of them? I don't live in

Clevelen.d, 80 1 don't know the answer to that. A I dconft

remember any of their names.

Q You don't remember any of the names where you went?

A No.

Q Why'? A Well" there was no I'eason to remember.

Q Well, as you walk down the street now you remember

some of them you wen t to before. As you pass by them now

in Cleveland you look a t some of them and say, ttTna t f s the

place vlhere I went before. n it I don't say that to m~rself.

There is no reason for me to say that to myself.



bd 7 Sidorovich

you.

Q There is, now; I'm asking you. A Well, I'm telling

Q Well, now, refresh your memory, see if you can't re­

member one of those places, at least one; you can remember

one of them. A Well, there is numerous ones coming up all

the time.

q What? A There is new ones springing up or dicii

spring up all up and down the street there, one of them

right, I think, within about two blocks of where I live; I

believe it's called Elkhart.

Q Elkhart. Did you try that pla ce'i' A i bell eve I

walked around there a lot.

Q Was there anyone with you when you went to Erlac?

A Erdlae?

Q Yes. .A Yes, I went down with somebody who knew

Erdlac.

Q Who is that? A A fellow by, the name of Joseph

Chilenko.

Q A friend of yoursY A He was working with me at the

time.

Q Where does he live? A ~"'e lives in Clevela.'rld.

Q vvhereabou ts? A Well, he has moved and. I have heard

that he his father died and he ha.d bought a home or some-

thing like that and I haven't sean him, although I have

spoke to him over ~~e telephone.

Q ~ou called him up? A he called me up.
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Q What's h1s telephone number'? A I don t t remember.

Q If I wanted to get in touch with him where woold I

communicate with him? A I could find him in the telephone

.book.

Q Do you know where he works now? A Now, no.

Q Now, you looked in the newspapers, I imagine, before

you purch~sed this car. A That's right.

Q On the day tha.t you purchased it, tell me what you

did. You looked at the paper first that morning'?

A. 'l'ha t t S right.

Q A plain dealel~, wasn' ~ it? A That's right.

Q And wha t did you do after you saw it? You spoke

to your wi fe? A Well, I called several dif ferent a.ds and

street car or the bus, one or the other.

transportation. I didntt have a car. I had to use the

then my wife ana I went out and we 'went to

Q You don't remember the names of the people? A No.

Q Where they Ii ved? A No.

,,~ How did you go ou t to these places? A By public

Q Well, at this stage of the proceedings I think it's

it. Then I

to find au t what they have for sa.le and what they wanted for

look at some of those that T had called...L

Q Whom did you visit? A Well, there was -- there were

others I saw which I don t t recall at all.

my duty to warn you, advise you, that you are testifying

under oath and that you are subject to penalties of perjury
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which includes the possibility of being indicted for perjury

if you are not giving truthful answers. Now, I realize it's

two years ago, but you certainly know how you wen t out to

Pfleger f shouse. Now, once again I repeat tl1.e que s tlon:

How did you go out to Pfleger's house on the day that you

bought the car', A You mean the man from whom I bought the

car'l

Q Yes. A As I recall, I took a bus, a street car and

bus or a bus and street car out there.

~ You talked to him outside here this morning, didn't

you? AYes.

Q Didn't that refresh your recolle etlon as to the

events of that particular day? A Well, what do you mean

by "refresh u?

Q Well, couldn't that recall to your mind what took

place on that day? A I recall that I bought the car on

day.

Q Yes. Now, tell us what happened. Your story is

you went there by public bus. What bus did you take to go

ou t there? A Well, I hadn't ever been out there before

and I had to go th~ough the Cleveland transit system map

and pick out a route and follow the route to get out there.

Q What time did you leave yor home that day? A I be-

lieve it was after lunch.

Q What time? A I couldn't tell you whether it was

1 '0 t clo ck or 2 0 t clo ok or 12: 30.



wanted? A 1 don't recall.

r"18 call tha t INe d1 d.

Sidorovich

But it was my understanding that a Studebaker was

Q Well, what cars were you interested in, just

Studebakers? A Well, I looked at other cars, I mean I

looked at Chevoolets and I looked at Fords and I looked at

Q What did he say'? A Let me think. Yes, I believe

yes, he told me that he wanted $750 for that car.

Q And you told your wife. did you, what he said he

Q Did you talk price over the telephone? A I asked

him let's see. If I recall, I asked him what he was

asking for it. I must have spoken price with him.

~ You had a list in your pocket, d1~~'t you? You have

just testified that you telephoned several people.

A That's right.

Q You made appointments, didntt you? A I didn't say

I made appointments.

Q Well, did you make appointment s", A I don 't recall

~~at I made any appointment.

Q You made a.n appointment 'wi thPfleger. A I told him

that I -- that his ·ad was interesting and. that, if possible,

I would be down to see him.

bd 1.0

Q You and your wife left home'? A That's right.

r Now, where did you go from the time you left home

and the time you got out to Pfleger's place? A I can't re­

call whether we stopped to see any other cars or not. I don t



bd 11 Sidorovich





away.

bd 13 Sidorovich

A Which other one?

Q The Ghevvy. A No, I did not. I said I bought that

around '43.

And you bough t the DeSoto after you moved up

A I had the Chevvy when I was already in

Q 'Ilo yourbrother-i:n.-law? A That t S right.

Q Was that before you purchased the DeSoto? A That

was before I purchased the De"Soto.

Q What did you use for transportation after you gave

it away? A I walked.

Q. How long a walk 18 1 t from the rai lroad to the bus

station? A The railroad. There is no bus station. It's

sbou t a. mile and a half from my home to the l'tailroad sta tion

Q You walked the t every day? Ii Every day except

when 1 could get a lift.

Q In the winter, too, in the winter? A Well, in the

winter I was lucky. One of our neigabors used to go to work

and he used to give me a lift. I would walk down the road a

Q '43.

to Chappaqua. f?

Chappaqua..

Q When did you gp to Chappaqua? A In Chappaqua, I

believe I went up there ei ther in t 42 or '43. I believe 1 t

was in '43.

Q And you bought the car'r A No; I bought the car

after I had already been in Chappaqua.

Q But you s 9.y you gave the Chevvy away? A I gave l\t,



or five.

station.

Sidorovich

As a draftsman? A As a draftsman.Q As what?

(Contfd by LB)

Q Where were you working then? A At the Koll-Morgen

Optical Corporation.

Q Where is that? A Brooklyn, New York.

Q And what were you making? A I believe I was making

about $2 an hour.

Q Well, how much a week'? A Oh, $80.

Q And what time did you ha.ve to get up in the morning

to get to work over there? A Well, I had to catch the 6:15

at Chappaqua which would get me in about 8 0 'clock at Koll-

Morgen, and I used to have to get up a.bout a quarter to five

bd 14

piece and I used to pick him up at his home. He used to

pick me up at work and he dropped me down at the railroad
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Q A quarter to f1 ve. What time ~lid you get home

at night? A We use~ to knock off a+- fi ve, use:i to get home.. u

pretty late, used to get home' around about eight o'clock in

I am not sure.

Tailoreil VVoman.

) ,

with you in ~he mor~ing? A No, we

anj a't night.

Q ~.She wai t for you at night? A 'llhet I s right.

Q She ina ve to make tha t tri p too? A In the rnornin

train? A l'ha tIs right.

Q She get up every jay with you anj tak an early

Q Who. Ti was she making'? A I jon I t know.

Q 'Where was, she' working? AShe' was working at

Q Was your wt.fe working :J.llring tbis ~ riod?

'Q VVhat we-reyou paying for rent? A. We were paying

A Up at 10 M.onroe Street?

Q When. you were at Chappaqua? .A Up 8.1j OhappSqua'

she was worki r:g.

Q l~o, roughly; you do not h?-veto be aeGura te.

A I believe we were paying aboQ1j $42 or $42.50 •



he lives now· Atthat time he was Ii ving at Campfire Road.'

tha.t wSt? a

A I 10 not know

Q To get back to the Car business

Q lJVhere does he live?

A We really, were lucky.

vvit;h you'? A No, she called up anjthe fellow usej to pick u

up anj take ue .Jown to- the station.

Q The jays he jidn't plok you up. A Ie, he always

Si:lorovich

~ ~hat about the morning, she walk to the station

~ When, in the morning? ~ In the evening.

Q Every day? A Every day.

Q Virho was he'( A Eis name was George. I Jci not kno

picked us up.

Q You :10 not remember his s,econd name? 1]10.

his second name·

ride with him too.

Q 'Iou were kindof ludky you had George and Peggy.

Q Did he gi veyou a ri:le every:Ia,y? A Every day.

His wife's name was Peggy· She also workefl and she

little a~ide. On the 1ay -- we got to the point where you

had ,:liscussed the purchase of the car 'with your wife and yo

talked with Mr. Pfleger over the telephone atij he tol~ you

that the ",~,p ~;,l"iCL~ was $750 ; then you say you left the house

some time after lunchanj you proceeded to Mr. Pfleger I ~

hous e • Now, tell me exse tly vvna t you j1 d from the time you

lef t your house until you got to 1il[r. Pfleger I 8? - A Exactly

I couljn1t tell you.

tB_2



to fin;:1 the plaoe, an:! I haj a illb,P at the time. I do not kno if

i~ You walke:! up to his, place, is that righ tor 'J1Jhat

Q You s top anywhere en route'? A ! do not recall.

Q Where ji j you ge't off the bus "~ A At the,

Sidorovich

Q What iid you 10 when YOQ got off? A I starterl

At theenp of the ride yell go'G off? A Yes.

Q What was the routie you took, wha t bus jid you

take? b If you haj a map r'o tell you.

bus yeu took? A 10·

Q Did you take a bus'? A AsI recall it, I took a

Q Can I t you tell me JitJ1 thout a map'? I am not supp 8 ....

ed to be a walking encyclopedia, I canlt oarry these bhings

Q Your wife was with you? A 1'hat l
8 Tight.

had oocasion to go back there.

Q Can l t you remember where you went thali jay,what

aroun.:l wi th me; you are from Clevel::~no, I'm not. A I never

.trow mach of a wa.lk 1 twas.

1 t was the e ntl of the ri de.

sort of a horne jij he have? A I jon It remember.

Q Very much of a w,&lk was i t fT em the en:! of the

ride to where he 11vej? A I got lost a couple of times tryin'

ing arounj for whers h~ llved.

Q You jonot remember the home? You know nothing.

about it? £ I jo not reme~ber. I mean, I m1gh~.have seen it

--and I might-ha~oken to hi~-abo~~":~:'lO~'~ r:arnh..... ~~·1-·

LB-3



normally, asked him if he hajthi s car for sale.

to find out vuhathe wanteJ for 'Ghis car beoause I. j1d no.t

A Well, ~I wantedQ Is nit that a litti:te unusual?

you this mar ning and we talke j abOUli pri ce over the ·tele;..

phone"? A I jon't be11eve I jii.

Q You jid not say that? ANo. Because as I

Q Dijn 1 t you say tha t n 1 am so and. so anJ I called

wan t to spenj $750 if I could get it for $650 •

later, he wanted more money for it.

You went up to him, . did' you, wi thyour wife?

Q Dt:i you introrluce yourself"? fA ];Jo, I flo not

"beIi eve I intro:iuced mysel:f'.

Q You jid not? ABo-

Q Di d you in;ro juce your wif ef A No.

Q When you got to his house 1ij you go in the house

Q ~here jid you see him? A I believe he was, if I

8i jorovich

passed the place, anj then VIle carne back, as I recall 1 t, 80' . ~

body waS alreajy there, and when we Came back down the bloc

again, after we had alreajy passed t he place, t.he car was

stianjing in the driveway ann I believe he was by the Car or

he was near the car or -- I jon l t recall.

r1ght away? A No-

recall there was somebojy there when we got there, anj we

Q 1. know that •. But you walk·eo up to a man.

you 1dentifyyouxself .... - dian't you ide'ntlfy yourself? A I

went up tic him an:1 I prObably asked bim, as I think I

.,. ..... 4

.L:b-



Q What ~ifi he say? A But we talke:l abol.1t othertihig:

------._---- ----

he ::-J.id not kno'vv whether the car was coming through, I rebal '.

har:l they 'vvere to get;. He told me he had ordere:l another

car and he ~ij non know whether he wou1j sell this because

besides t;he car. I think we .talked about the gener'al 81 tuat·OJ

Q Whal; was the general situation? A· Yes, yes, I

the trunk. He to1:1 ill e abou t t heti l' e s he ha j ; theYWG-r en' t

more
Q I suppose your wife know.s; aDOll tit than you :3c

then? A I 10n t t kno.~1 haven't spoken to her abautit.

Q. Then what l1appenej~ A' Then we spoke' about; the CSf

q Wha t-jifl you say! A I jon I t know.

Q. You jon It; rernernber? A No.

burning oil and \l\l'hat kind of rni1eagehe was getitlng,.. ano

remember 'U1lhat I ji j. I believe I asked him whether 1 twas

to introj llce my wife or myself.

81 doro'\Tich

ask.e~ ,him to of course after! asked him to he picked

uP the hood. Then I ~8ked h~m if I could take a lookih

When I aske~ him price and he quotej me $800, I tolj him "1

8.-1reajy called you onc~ before and you haJquote:j me $75o.n

He saij, fiWell, I harve ha:3. so many people lo6kin
o
O'. a" h

:v t e. 08,

anj you quoted me a price of 6750 ."

Q You jij not tell him your name and you 5ij not

in trojuce yourself? A I :11jn It know the man. I :Jon't have

Q I unjerstand that. A I alreajy hhj called him

an:! he said, IJAreyou the one thatcalled?lI I saiJ, ilJes,

in very gooj shape; anj we talked about the cars and how

LB-5
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Q VJha t els e'? A What else what?

--'~h"'" "" -1 e "h .~ t'? 1nih,Ht a·..r e.· ~\,f'; e h. fZ':.,...... [' ~ ..t..C' "v r? '-,f,.' 1., "'i, .~. .; p~.,',"v do)J t; S Vu ,l.l.i:;;'l. I H _ ~ ." l.J. - ..... ,= - L,1 ~ C ~ -

nam.Elly, tha y::; if he coul:! not get thiS car, he would let rile

telling a

.:1 e fl .1. ni t E~1 •to h·' . I" cTI S

no, I offerej him less, anj after\\

("'" When was the. t done'? :lou see., you :'::i re
~ v..

"I will offer you

pUlled it out of the driveway?

lot of these things ~njyou haven't even trie:i the car ot1.t

A No, '06, no. We went into h~s hou~e, into the kitohen.

Did you try the~ca,r out? 11 YeS, yes, I tr1eu the car out.

Q Where was the agreement sign~j, in the :iriveway1

~ 'I'e11 us a. bout 1 t ,jon t t be bashful. A After w

haj been talking a while, after we looked at the cal', he

says, well -- I asked him if I could try 1s out, and hes~

all right. He pUlle:1 it cut of the driveway, 8.n:1 I know h

the Cleal wouldn ItS tan~ because, --I believe! put up adsp

of $100 or maybe it was $50, fOTthe c~, anti we signed an

H Well, all right. 11, Bur; he set some cond! tions to 'Ghe sale,

k now before the '~veek \;11<:;,8 au'll, this new oar thaLhe had

ortlereii, woul:1 let meknowbef 9r e the week was out, and

not a clambake. i:+. ,We agreej on tb.8 price. I tiolj him,

we got to talking he 8&18 he wanted to get more, and I beli

I aaij, "Well, I will offer YGuthe price that you quoted

me over the Plone. tl An'j he hesitatie:i abOuti that anj he saij.,



hy ,.:l ra,u,11 c,,' '0,1"'':::' t:,;k'" ''",' 1'"1, 4~ .... . . "",~1;,,...~.- _, a-.I/.L-.J.

A I :1i dn 1;, have to tI'Y' theWhY'?

the foot--break,. the

things which you shoulj So to a car, anj I amsorry I

~ Yau were 'buying a new ca.r, wexen l t you'? A

do all those tbings to this . car because I foun,jout

sub=; cri ber to tile Consum~ir6 OniOn which had a whole

Q Din you try, the emergency? A ~To ..

81 :1Cl'OiTi ell

YJhy vvoulj you ba ve remernberej it?

~ So he puIIBj it out oitba driveway 0Uj

sequently

Q How could JDu ha ve if you ji j not dri ve t

because I WaS vtlorrieoaboug the clutch and what i

drove i 1; around and the Car responded well.

clutch out fast, and there wa,s no slip there , so I

clutch was in good shape.

Q You ji jaIl t11isf A 'l'hat I'B right. I was

Ii You askej me whether I jrove the,' car an:j Itol::t

I .had driven che car.

happene:.t Y A And then I got beh1no. the wheel anj :r

that he bad no emergency br6&k so he must have haj t

cal' that he haj no emergency 'break at all.

in gear anj kept the energency break off because I ha

.aroun!i -- h,e tc,ld. me whioh blockEl to jrive it around

in a new emergency break at my own expense.

would have noticej it and I ~.~ d1jn't know when I

lE-7



d8l?

me.Q No one else was with you? A My wife waS with

~ AnyboJy else1 A No.

I do?

to you, You swear to tell the truth, the whol e truth

and nothing but the truth~ so help you Goj, yoU saij

TEE WITNESS: That I s right.

8i dorovi ch

Q. .Lha\;'s ·William Perl, also known E',S William

"(~ Exac t 1y.

of his 00. th.

FOREM.AN: I want to rer.Gin:! this gentleman ;j,gain

~ Here~s a picture. Do you recognize that person?

~ You jo not recognize him? A No.

THE FOREMAN: Do you remember when I said

room, I have no othel: I'eoourse but to ask the Forernan and

Q You saij you ji j, but I am trying to help you'

A No-

grand jury for a perj-ury" indic tmen t against you. Do yeu

appreciate that faot? A I heard,youte11ing me.

Q, You unjerstanj English? 11:. Yes, I do.

A I drove that car.

out before you get in" too jeep. VVho jI'oiTe t.ba ~ car that

Q. You ar e under 00. ttl. Once again I "tell you t ha'1;;

you are un:ier oath anj youare sUbject to the penal 'ties of

perjury. If your testimon,y Jiffers from someb-o:iyelse 's

who has been in here, or other people who have been in. this

"LB-8



fA Bels not familiar.
. do

Q You do not know who VVilliawPerl is? A 1 50 not

TEE FOREM..AN: ,t;l,nSWer y'38 or no.

Q You say you .tie ver savv this man before? ii !50

transpolia "[;1 on.

do not reoa.ll that man,y-au :1'0 not know Wl10 hei 8, you

x6call meeEing him.

Q lOU did nctj:ri V6 up to Mr • .Pfleger's plan.€: in

\ct And he was. not,mrl th you on the jaythe t

r. 0 purchase 1iba t car'? A As fay ete I I"ecal1 hE~ vJa.sh t t.

THE fII Tl\fESS: I am answering.

~Do you know ,\;Yilliam Perl? Amovhim how, soc

~ Any way. A No. I JO not know -VYil11am Perl.

Q Do yoU; knDVl.1 Bucha rna.n? Al :lon t txemembe:r

recall him even.

thfs gran:! jury less ljhan ten jays ago. You say you jo

Q. Hever saw him before? A I :10 not recall him.

Q' I ask you paintblank, was William P eI'lmut t ex

or VVilliam Perl as he is nOli; known wi th you

you went to.Mr. Pfleger's house to pUT.chase

do flotrecall.

an automobile? A No. ~s I recall it, I took the publio

Perlmutter. Fox your infoxrnatiitn, Pe:elmu1ir.er was before

met hirn.

not know him! A I :.10 not reoall him.

LB-9 Sidorovi.ch



Answer Yes
%

Q You havan It answererlthe question.

Q. Di;j you ever convers e wi t h ":;Yi lliam Perl? A I jo "

THE FOREMAN: I mighti remind you tha t th:is is

ra·ther an i ntel11gent jury. Now, come clean, y()u

are fooling nobojy.

( Co n t. by ED)

~ Dij youever meet William Perl? A I :10 not re·call

Q Jus t you and yo UX wife go there? A Tha b' sthe

Q. You d i j no t Jxi v'a up in a-P. au t 0 mo 01 1e when you

came ..to Mr. Pfleger's house? Ails I recall, I CartH$ up by

publiC transportation.

vii th me·

I remember it.

recall.

10. A Well, I do not remember having done these thitrgs.

I mean, . I might have me t the man in the s tree~, but; Ino

having met william Perl.

not remembermeeting him.

Q 'Was ttLrt;re a thirj party wi th you the day that

I
you wen t to Mr. Pfleger s home .... - I believe it was in July

,of 1948 -- to purchase that car, was there a thir:i party

with you c·n that rlay? A Ido not recall a tillr j party

LB "10
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BY MR. LANE:

Sidorovicb.

Q Now, what have you got to say? Do you want to tell

the truth? A I don't recall having met Mr. Perl.

Q Did you ever talk with him? A And I don't think he

was with me when I went to buy the car.

Q Was there anybody with you when you went to buy the

car? A I don't recall anybody being wi th me except my wife

Q Did you ever talk to Mr. Perl over the telephone?

A Where?

Q Anywhere? A I don't remember.

BY THE RJREMAN:

Q Excuse me a minute. You say you Gon't think that

he was wi th you. But if he hadn t t been with you would you

recognize him? You just said you don't think Mr. Perl was

with you • Well, now, who is this Mr • Perl? Ii I'dom.' t re­

call having met Mr. P~rl.

Q Yes; but you said you didn't think Mr. Perl was

ttw! th me. n When I say I don't think Mr. Lane was wi th me,

when I say "Mr. Lane, It I mus t hava known. Mr. Lane, to be

able to say ftMr. Lane." Now, you just s'ald you don't think

Mr. Perl was with you. How do you say he wQsnttwith you?

Did you know him before? A No, I didn't know him before.

BY MR. LANE:

Q Well, all right; we'll get back to this point. You

say you tried the car out. But after having read this

article as to what you should do when you buy a secondhand



I

sitting in the back.

Q And where was Mr. Pfleger? A He was sitting beside

car you neglected to try the emergency brake. When you

pUlled up in front of the house, as you say you did after yo~

tried the car, when you came to a stop did you put the

Sidorovichbd 2

Q Did you make a down deposit, a down pa~nent?

Q Did you and your wife talk at all'? A I donft even

Q Into the kitchen. Arid1ho drew up the agreement?

Q Do you usually put the emergency brake on when you

emergency brake on then? A No.

stop? A No.

Q Where was your wife during this ride? A She was

Q You don't? A No.

me.

Q A.nd after you tried the car ou t did you then immedi­

ately purchase it? A No. We talked.

Q You talked. Did you go away or did you buy it at

that time? A No; we bought 1 t at that t !mo.

Q You purchased it right there? You didn't leave the

premises at all? A I don't recall lea.ving the premises at

Q And you say you wen t in side there, in to his house?

A ~ believe we went into the kitchen.

A ge did.

remember whether she was in the kitchen with me.

Q And what did you agree upon as the purchase price

of the car? A $750.



3 Sidorovich

A I did.

Q You did. What was that? A I believe it was about

$50. It might have been 75 or it might have been 35.

Q Did you meet anybody else at Pfleger's place that

day? Did you see his wire or any of hIs relatives?

A He had some people sitting in the back.

Q You waived to them? A No, I didn't waive to them.

I didn 1 t know them. He didn t t introduce me to any of them.

Q But you saw them? A They were 81 tting in the back.

Q Did your wife waive to them? A I only saw them, I

b~lleve, when I came into the kitchen.

Q You saw them. Did they see you? A Probably 0

Q. Who was in back there? A I don't remember. There

were a number of people there.

Q Any children '? A I don It reca.ll.

Q And when did you eventually get full possession of

the car --title to it, r ..ther~! A I believe the following

week he called me, during the week, and he told me that he

was going to get delivery on his other car and that he 'Will

go through with the agreement.

Q YOll got the agreemen t) did you, in wri ting"?

A I be lleve we both ha.d a copy of the agreemen t.

Q, Well. then you must have in troduced yourself at the

time you signed the agreement. A Well, yes, we put down

our names.

Q Yes. And didn't you introduce him to your wife then



I transferred from stuyvesant.

--'- .' 1" ','. """.~

~

Sidorovi en

What Communist cell?

You were in the same Communist cell together, too,Q

bd 4

Q. Where did you go to

Q What high. school? A

in New York.

together.

. Q Well, you tell me. A I didn t t tell you.

Q Weren't you interested in Communist activities?

Q This is like cat-a.nd-mouse, isn't it? A I feel

A I might have.

Q Well, did you? A I don't remember.

Q Well, you are· acting like one. Where did you meet

Q Is your memory this poor every time that you are

asked to talk? Do you have a. bad memory'? A· Normally, yes_
i

:i
school? A I went to high school.. I

stuyv e s an t 'High Schoo1, here '

A Are we talking about me~ng Julius Rosenberg?

THE FOREMAN: Yes, he is asking you another ques­

tion. And you answer it, too.

lnst! tute of Brooklyn.

like Ii mouse.

weren t t you?

Julius Rosenberg? ti In high school.

:j

ii
~

Q Oh, you went there, too? Where else? A High school.
JQ No; after high school. A Then I went to Polytechni*.
:J

11

Ii

o When did you meet Julius Rosenberg? A Oh, Julius 1,1.:

I met when ~ was in high school, over in Seward Park, after ~

~
:1

11

!
Q How well did you know him? A We were in two claase,.

,~l
:1

~
i1

tl

~

Ii
~



class.

Sidorovich

Q Now, you knew he was i terested in ComrnlUlistic

bd 5

Q On what grounds? A Well, I understand I don't have

THE FDREMAN: Why?

think that in itself -- there is something critical in tha.t·g'~
'I

Q Yes. You went to meetings; right? A That I won't

Q Well, nOV'J,. you voJere in tere sted in t:t:a Young Communis

Q That was the first time you knew, he was -- Ii This

Bcnool wi th J'ulius Rosenberg we were two kids going to high

activities, didntt you? A When?

Q Well. some time in the past. A When

Q \ifuen? A I don I t remember.

school. He was in my chemistry class and he was in my music

Q Vllhen for the first time did you know he was interes

in Communistic activities? A I met Julius Rosenberg after

high school when I went to a social given by the Young

Communist League and Julius Rosenberg was there and I saw

him again.

League:l too? A I was.

answer.

was around )35, t36 or '37.

to en s'wer any questions that may tend to incriminate me.

Q Do you think that would, because you went to a meet

ing of the Young Communist ~eague? A I reall:l do.

Q You really do"( You are serious about that? You

A Well, I believe, in the hysteria today any admission likej
!



bd ~ Sidorovich

that on my part wouldn't help me at all.

Q Well, it's not a question of helping you; it's a

question of incriminating. how would that incriminate you,

just the fact that you attended meetings? Do you think tha.t

any court in the land would convict you because you 'attended

a meeting, or something? If I attended a meeting of the

Democratic or Republican Club, am I going to be convicted

for that, just for attending a meeting? Is that your idea,

jus t a.ttendin g 1 tsel! 1s enough to incl"imlnate yau?

A No. But associating wtth people like that would tend to

1ncrimina te me.

Q Not necessarily. You could knO\'V Sta.lin, if you kr,ow

him, tha.t doean' t incriminate you; even if you know him

personally, ~lat doesn't incriminate you. Plenty of people,

reputable people, nave met Stalin. Our Ambassador --

A I ne vor met. Stalin.

Q our Ambassador, when he goes to Russia,meets

Stalin. But if I asked him if he ever met Stalin he couldn't

very well say the fact that he met him tends to incriminate

him. Do you follow ma? I mean, the fact that you know

somebody doesn't incriminate you, necessari 1)-. Of course,

if you did things with him,if you went out and conspired

with him, that's something else. But if you know a person

I think I ha ve met people who afterwards have go ttenin to

trouble, but the fact that I have known them doesn't

nate me. I have done nothing wrong. I happen to be





Sidol"OV ich

n forced labor cs.mps. It

Q Why did you use it? A Because'it means

Q, Who used rt forced labor camps n~ You mean the Cleveland
1

Plain Dealer? A That's rie..,ht I there was an arti cle in the

forced labor battalions.

JUROR: Where is there a. forced labor camp in.

Q Apparently I don't. But if you have read the bill

carefully, the bill as it's proposed, it proposes to have

you, I don't see how, unless you can explain to me how.

A I don't say I belonged to the Young Communist League.

;1

that you belonged to the Young Communist League ineriminate~
j

;

I asked you if you did and you said you can I t answe~
;1Q

that because it would incriminate you. A That's right.

Q Well, as a matter of fact, you did belong to it.

I know that. You don't have to hide it from me. I don't

legal. That doesn I t mean to say that. because you are a

Communist yo u can be indicted, if you lega.lly register and

let the world knew what you are. So when you say the fact

all Communists registered; if you are e. Commun1st,' you

register t'I'm a Communiat,ll you register as that. '!hat's



fWITNESS EXCUSED]

way?

Sidorovichbd 9

THE FDREMAN: You are excused temporarily.

he is still under subpoena.

Q And wi th the understanding of that you still say the.

MR. I;ANE: Will you excuse him momentarily.~ Eu t

Q You appreciate the fact that if yourtest1mony

A In'what sense?

Q In any way. A I have told you everything I know.

Q You ha~enft. You have lied here today. A In what

Q Did she lie? A I don't know what she said.

care whether you did or not. I know it from other sources.

except my wife.

from the witnesses in here before, I ha.ve no a.lternative but

Q Your story is different from your wife's. A I

haven1t lied.

I can put somebody else in here where you are now to provo

that you belonged to the Young Communist League.

A Well, you are going to get the proof from them, not from

Q I can see that you are not going to cooperate at all

no one came up to Mr. Pfleger's house on'that day that you

bought the car'? A As I recall, there 'Was nobod.y wi th me

to indict you, or 2sk the Grand Jury to do that; "OU under­

'stand that ~:. .A You told me that.

_._--_._------
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IB-l Pfleger

ROB E R T E • P F LEG E R, rec~lle~ and again

july sworn by the Foreman, test1fie~ as follows:

BY MR.. LANE:

Mr- Pfleger, will you tell us what bus line or

car line you take from she center of Clevelanj out to your

A YeU tolj me tha~ the man walked from the end of

the oar line.

~ You tell us ..

is where the car line ends.

I
.~

!
I live at the e5ge of ClevelanJt

!

To walk from the end of the I

car line to my home ltJoulj be a t least 8. three mile walk.

Now, he coulj have taken a bus up State RoaJ, wbich I forgo~
I

to tell you while out here, ~nj the bus woulj be about a !

mile walk and a mile back, anj then he would have Lu:.id to

make tha ti walk fOil!' times because he mgde two trips.

to the end

horne. A

fThe' tea tiimony gi ven by SiClorovioh was the t he wep.t
!

of the line and then he walked from there to YCUF
!

It woulj be a bou ti a three mi Ie walk four times; I

well, at least twice woulJ be six miles.

TEE JUROR:

THE vrI TNESS :

The witness saij bus. !i
!There is a bus line tha t serves!
!

the street known 3S State Roaj, frrm the end of the

cc;,r }j.ne cut for several miles. He C0111j have taken

the street caT to the enn of the line, got on the

and go t off, a t_ !1ly_§_trea..
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JUROR:

house?

Pfleger

---r-
~

Eut r.he bus joes not terminate near your !
I

THE ~ITNE88: Re, sir.

JUROR: Hc'Vi' far is the walk from the bus to your
!

house? !
THE ¥r! TN'ESS: A mi Ie. I

~

I
tl'(JROR: And the bus terminal is at the end ,of thel

I

oar line? I
THE~~T1~SS: It has changed since then, but at thar..

time i twas true.

BY .MR. lJ,.NE: I
Q So &t the pn~ of the bus line 1t is a mile to yo~r

I
house? A Not from file end of the bus line. It is a m.ile fro~

mY llous·e to '8, bu.s stop.

Q What is the jistance frcm the end of the bus line

to your hous e1 A That woul:i be sev6Ial miles.

Q ?-ha tis the :jis tance from the en~ of the oar line

to your house? J~ I weul:i e s bima~ eat lea s t three mi lee.

BY JURORS:

Q Dij yeur in-laws meet this man Perl? A Bo,sir.

~ They speak ~ith hi~ at ~11? A No,sir. The

nego tiations for th:::car were carried on in the dri veway of

mY home, anj the Cel!' 'V,!i;;.S somewha t to the front of the rand.

Pe J:'1 ji j net t be ywer e sit ti ng in the "ta ok IE, r t of the

yax~, unfler the ~reas, Sunj~y afternoon.

Q Do you think they could recognize him? A They
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ha~e been um ble to ijent1fy any of his pictures, anj my

wife triej to identify Mr.~erl this week an3 was unable to

do so.

Q, Are any of tl-jeu in a posi tion to say whether

were two or thxee people t;herel A Yes, air.

~ Anjthey say there were tbree? A YeS, sir.

~ In signing the agreement -- was there anything

wrong with youx hanj-bxeak, emergency break? A Yes, I belie

the::r."e was.

Q Wastha t j1scovered at thetime they 'lVere dri ving

the car arourt:I'? WaS mentiion maJe of it? A No; at least I

do no t recall 1 t, if there was. 'Bu t the thing is tha t this

third party jrove the automobile anj SiJorovich never drove

the oar un til I -:1 elive:red 1 tto him.

Q Did Y0U back tbe car out of the jriveway10r Perl?

A Perl backed it out.
BY MP. LANE:

~ You say there are people there who saw tt~ee

but could not identify thenl'! A Yes.s1r.

Q Your wife could testify there were three people

there? A Yes, sir.

BY JURORS:

'''I!. Signing the Cigreel'llent was where,. in the hous e?

A In the hous e .

Q In r.he k1tchen? A Yes.

Q Who was there? A Mr. anj Mrs. ~1joroVich and

and I believe my wife came in to -;:et some writing mat
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Q Dij you ride in the car when Perl jrove it

around? A Yes, sir. I rode in Gbe front seat alongsije of

PeTl, ,;inj Mr. anj Mrs. °1dorovich rO:1e -;n the back seS.t.

Q When you returne:l from that jrive with Perl,

where was the car parke:}? A In tIie same place in tbe j:rive­

way, in the same position approximately tha~ we haj taken

it out.

( lill TN ESS EXCUSED)



Q You are still under oath.

I wa.lked.A

Yes, you are still under oath.

SID 0 R 0 V I C H, recalled o

On the bus I went to the end of the line o

I don 1 t recall.

A

A

THE FOR:F.!JViAN:

Vllell, you said you went to the end of the line and

And you walked from there <?

How :fa.r did you take the street car; te the end of

Q

Q

Q

MICHAEL

bd 1

BY MR. rJANE:

cars and a. bus.

the line?

A No, I was not firedo

(To the Foreman) Will you admonish him of that fact?

Q Where did you look for work after you left the

August 30, 1950

(By Mr. Lane.)

you walked.

lieve that's what I took o

ing a lot, and I was fed up with the job o

Q TheJ didn 1 t fire you, by any chan ce, did they·?

optical company? A I took a long rest. 1 didn't look for

work. I tried - - I put up a property in Chappaqua for sale
I
i

and ~ thought -- I spoke to my wife, I believe, about gettink
1

i
i

J
11

Q (Conttg) Now, Mr. Sidorovich,tell us once again whati
~

J
transporta. tion you took ou t to Mr 0 Pfleger t sholl se on the da~

il
tbat you purchased the car. A I repeat, as I recall, I toeM

~
Ii

public transportation, street car and a buator several stree~

'I
;1

:!
:1

:1Q You say you took a street car and a bus? A I be- ij
1i

'I

~
:]

I
'i·
,I
~
(\
jj

H

!I
:1

~
~
Ii
;1

Q Now, why did you leave your 'VIJork' at the optical ;:
:1

II
company in Brooklyn? A Well, I was commuting, I was eommuti

':

-------------,
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ou t of New York and going somewhere else ..

Q v~hy did you go ·to Cleveland? ~
a No particular reason.

1
Q Why did you select the Tucker Company to go to work '!

was wo~king with who told me about Tucker.

')
,[

there was one fellow I ~
[I

~
At that time thej

Ii
\1

1I

Well,A

At that time they were known as

1
I didn't select the iucker Company to go to work fo1.

1 know; bu t when you worked for 'rucker how did you

A

Q

for1'

Q Why did you go to viork for them? A And I couldn't
ti
,j

get a raise that they had promised me up at A. w. Hecker, so j
~\

happen to work for them?

weren't kno,~ as Tucker.

How long a V1Jalk VIlas it, would you jUdge, from the

end of the car line to purchase this -- to the man who

the International Aviation Corporation.

to discuss his testimony with anyone else.

~TROR: Can I ask him one questioh?

excuse this m~n until tomorrow'? And admonish him not

MR. LANE: Gentlemen, and Mr. Foreman, will you

WVhen I came to Cleveland 1 went to several firms, looking

for employIIlco t ,and the first firm I found employn1ent wi th

was the A. W. Hecker Company.

~j

1

I decided to go to vvrk to find other employmen t and then I :1
• ij

got this lead from Tucker or I rather, International Aviation i
[I
!

Corporation and 1 went up to see the man in charge up there.~
il
Ii

Q Who was this man that gave you the lead? A A fellow
~

I worked wi the I'ro trying to remember his name. I can't

remember his name.

----------------------
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was selling this car?

THE WI '!NESS: You mean in miles?

JUROR: Yes.

Q No, not in miles, necessarily; in yardage. How far

from the house -- how far a walk wa.s i t'?A Well, as I say,

as I recall, I got lost trying to find. --

Q You went to the end. You say you took a car line.

You went to you got off the car line somewhere and you

took a bus and you went to the end of the bus stop.

A I got off the end of the bus stop and I walked around

looking for

Q Was it closo to the bus stop, the place where he

lived, in that vicinity, a couple of blocks away?

A I don I t remember exactly where' he was. I remember that

we walked around quite a bit trjring to find the street.

Q Circled around there. Well, his place is fairly

close to the bus stop, wasn't it, the end of the bus line,

in that vicinity somewhere? A It was in that vicinity

where, yes •

.Q Say A But whether it was three blocks or four

blocks or five blocks --

Q Well, within eigh~ or ten blocks" somewhere in that

vi cini ty? A I t was the onl~· way to get trere that I knew

of, except by taking a taxi.

~TROR: How many blocks would you estimate his

house was from the end of the car line?



Sidorovich

THE WI '!NESS: I don't know. I was only there

once and~ as I say, I was lost.

JUROR: Well, you know how much you had to walk.

How mucb did you ha.ve to walk when you left there?

THE WI'INESS: well, we just strolled along.

~JROR: About how many blocks?

MR. LANE: ,Well, we'll take that up tomorrow.

If there are no further questions, you may be

excused until tomorrow.

THE WI TRESS: I'm coming back tomorrow?

THE FOREMAN: Yea. And you are cautioned not to

discuss any of this conversation.

THE WI'1NESS: With anybody?

THE FOREMAN : With anybody.

MR. LANE: Well, if he wants to ta.lk toa lawyer

about it, give him t~at permission.

THE FOREMAN: Right.

MR. LANE: If he wants to tell a. lawyer what he

told to the Jury today.

[va TNESS EXCUSED)



August 30 , 1950

(Mr. Lane)

bd 1 Ann Sidorovich

ANN SID 0 R 0 V I C H, recalled.

MR. LANE: Will you advise the witness that she

1s still under oath ana subject to the penalties of

the oath?

THE FOREMAN: Do you know wha t Mr • .l..iane told you?

THE \}III 'mESS: Yes.

THE F'OREMAN: You are still under oath to tell

the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth.

BY MR. LANE:

Q Now, on the day when you went out to Mr. Pfleger's

place-rlid you recogn1 ze him outside I inclden tally, au tside

the Jury room? A When you told me, ye B.

Q You recognized him? A Yes.

Q On that day your husband looked at some ads in the

Cleveland paper, is that correct, on a Sunday? A Yes. I

think we always do.

~ Did he talk to you after he saw the sa about this

Studebaker? A Well, I dontt remember. He may have.

Q Well, at an,. rate, you had decided to go out and

this man, didntt you? A Yes, I think so.

Q And did yo~ telephone him before that, or did your

husband? A Well, yes, I think we phoned him about the ~ 1

Q You phoned about the price? A Yes.

Q And who talked with this man; your husband?

A I think so. I'm not sure.

Q .AndV/h~1. t did your husbana tell you that the mm
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A I don t t remember wha t he said.

Q You don't remember? You donlt remember what the

pri ce wa 8 '? A ( N0 an elf er • )

Q What's the answer? A I'm not sure.

Q Well, didn't he say $750? Didn't he say this

Mr. Pfleger has a car he wants to sell for $750; wasn't that

it?

(Cont 'd byLB)
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.-... , l ' 11Th"Dl)n t ne say, ~-S Mr.

Pfleger has ~ c~r

it? A he ooul-'n I t have sa.i:1 Mr.Pfl,a,ge:.c; becb.use he not

~ He t~lkej with him, ji5n t the? h I 50 ~ot know

~ Di5n ' t he int_ojuce himself over the telephone?

Dijn't ne tell Pfleger who it WeB that Was calling?
\tl

A Yes,

he jij, I imagine; they generally jo.

,~. --Yes, tn'a.r>r,'p, !!';rl:'';;'' I s~y.~ - - - n--v ~ Kotbing wrong with it.

Dijnlt. Pfleger tell him wha~ his Dame was? A 1 nIt know.

In oth,r words, your busbanj jij net tell you

;hat1 A Di5n ' t tell me what?

Dijn ' t tell you whoohe was ~oing out to see?

A hell, 79 must have been ~cing out to see a car. 1 jon1t

remem'cer ·

~ Dijntt he tell you the &jjress? Dijn1t your

husbanj tell you where you were gcing to see this car?

Didn't he write it jown? he ~ust have writ~en jown the

anj s~jjress of the c~n he WhS going to see or else how co

DE: :f'ird _.iw'( ~ r.LC coulj ':",o.ke the paper along, I ._=?:uess.

11 t 't 1 e t;; 1 ng s •

Tha~'s not so lit~le. The. t' s t



A It w~s IDlli2 time inthe ~ftero00n, I

we areIi Se;.me pI::::. ce

you IG~Te your home

yeu Ii "(ling";y,:ere

tirte

8706

1:P-2

n I
I

n t knavv;

it mi;ht h~ve been.

0~nj DGW J15 you go out there, take a cab? A No.

'<'(, How j1 j you go? on We fLUS t he. \n3 :;c)n e by s tre et:

~ba~ street car jij you take~
1

A 1 jon t knovi.'.

"'t. YDU know tlere Yuu went. ~ere you q ver out "ha:;

~ that stre t car WGulj you nD~mally take to go OUt

there~ ~ We us~ally ~0 by car I guess.

~here jij you~et 0ff? A I jcn1t know.

Di j yOIl go :;0 the enj ot the oar lIne? A I :lon It

think 80. ~e got off aoj tuok d bUS, 1 think.

Q Where jij you go on the bUS, to the end of the 11 ?

A It might: have been. I :)on't know •. Michael :li:l all the

:lirectiing •

."" You ~ere wi r.il l1im. YOLl know Vilhere you. " ent,

~1' ~ "0")·1- •• r •• t- c,""oOt -;. .... J. ";;0 nl~"t 1r"'ll--"" T·._~,~.,n. I t .....-VS~I ...._·:"'.. m·;,·--·.l~·,''lOer u.rh.-.l-.l, -.) Y t u.. :.;, t7 '"' '.: - &... .... .. > :t.~...t ;i • _.,: _ v <:;1.... I' r;-'. ':";. n '::"'

this

"-t, 1(;U v,en:. with Y0Ul' uu.sQanjr A Ye:.::, I 51:), but I

not pay a~;entiGn ~o ~ha~ stree;.



the nj of the C4X line 0n ~he trolley car? Or ji5 you go

A 1 50n I t !';ht

~~nr; ~.i 5or 0 vi 011

Di5 you gs~ off somewher2 betwee~ ulevel~nj anj

.~ Nc.

lE-3

<>- You t off 80iliewhere1 n Yes.

You ~ake ~ bus~ A Yes.

On :;tle bus 5i j you:;et off somewhere between

where you took the bus ~nj the e~j of the bus line? A I

jonlt remember whether it w~s the enj of the line or not.

~ AfLer you ~ot off the bus where jij you ~alk to?

A We wblke:l :lown a broa:! str'f..:et, i t lcc:k~:1 Jike an avenue,

anj we kept looking for the street. I think we got lost an

w0.1k ej arQ unj, a b1 t ·

Bow far WctS it frvID the pl~ce you got off, how

because 'Ae lost --

~ !low far a wQlk , l:GW long were you vvolklng tjefore

wi ;.. ve been clos ex to ct balf hcll!'.

~ H&lf hn hour it ~o0k yuu ~ walk? A 1 2m not sur

Ycu ilver e lOE Yo ~ent hTounj several jiffer

stree~t:8 • .h Yes,sir.
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l!I.oUseto ';,he bUs 110(; un ':;he way back, ttlree OI' four

bUS line he usej.

olt think 0 W0Dt jixectly back to ~he

bus~ A Ne, 1 think the lli&n ~olj ~1cha81 how to go anj ~he

miuu tes « .." I

bus. I th~nk we stoppej for a snack.

I know that, bUli how many blocks was i. t'1' A !

Jcn't know.

¥'as 1 t 0. few, wc.s i ttwo or three? 7,'oul:l you

say it W~8 abou~ five minu~cs from ~here he live1 to ~he

bus line, taking au t the tl!1e that you h8.J tile snack?

~ It mlgh~ have been a llutle more than five minutes, 1

think.

~ Between five ~nj six hnj seven, eight minutes,

is tha~ abou~ correct! A It might be, 1 am not sure.

~ To the best of your recollection 1s 1~? A Yes,

~ vn the wC>..y back yc.;u ~ •. n 00Ck £::. bus bn.:1 then you

took d trwlley c~r, is th&~ ri~Dt1 h Yes •

..h;;;.. t t:ime j1 j YrJLl6e~ back to you.r home'? A 1

tl1ink so.
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~ Did you me- t ~illi~m Perl? A I Jon't; r,ninkso

-,'(, Yes.

~ You Jon1t know himr

Do you knew the Rosenbergs? ~ Yes.

'.(, Vi vib.n Glassman. A No.

Q lleiJ-er hear5 of herr A No.

Ne~~ hearj of her.

(Cont. -by BD)

~ Very well? A We were qU1~e frienjly.

~ Do YDU knuw Viv1Qn Glassman? A Glassman?

YeS.

Q Yes. A lio-

Q Never hearJ of hBr7
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bd 1

BY MR .. LANE:

Ann Sid.o~ovich

No.

Q Here i8 a picture of Vivian Glassman. Do you recog-;

n i ze he r? A No.

Q You never saw her before? A I don't th1nk so.

Q You never talked wIth her? ~ I doubt it.

Q You (lever hea.ra her name mentioned? A No.

MR. LANE: May the record inct1c&te that the witness

has seen three pictures of Vivian Gl&ssman.

Q Do you know a man by the name of Morton Sobell?

A No. I have seen a picture in the paper.

G You never saw him? A No.

Q Do you kno~""r JAN 0 •

Q You nev~,~//saw that picture before? A

Q Do you,/"know Joel Barr? A No ..

Q Ber~,,/l s a pic ture • You C10n t t recogni f'.8 him? A No.

Q D,9/ you kn ov~ Al fr ed Saran t? A No.

Q //Do you know the Greenglasses? A We 11, I have met

RU~.._/ I cannot remember meeting David.

~ Now J think hard. Weren't you in their apartnlE':tnt in

/"December or Janus.ry, rather, of 1945? A In the Greengla8se~t

aparbnent?

Q. No; in Rosenberg's apartment when the Greenglssses

were there. A I have been trying to remember that meeting

since Mr. Barrington tole me of it ana I do not remember

meeting Ruth and David together at any time. I remember

meeting Ruth once -- I don't remember the uate or the year ~~

FOIA(b)7 - (C)

FOIA(b)3 - Rule 6(e), Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure, Grand Jury

-------~-------------_._---_._--_._-~.

------------._------ --

----~._-----------
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at the Rosenbergs.

Q Is that the only time you ever v1si ted the Rosenbergs,',

was once? A No. We visited. them frequently. ' We were

neighbors.

Q You lived upstairs over their apar~ment over in

10 Monroe street? A That's right.

Q So you saw slot of them? A Fairly frequentLy.

Q Were you sick in the spring of 1945? Were you ill

after January of 1945? Did you have a breakdo~n of some ?

A Yes, I was very close to a breakaown. I don't think it

was as late as '45. I think it was a little earlier. It

was when I was 'Working for The Tlll10nrl 'Woman.

Q What happened? A well, I just sort of overworked

and got too tirea and had to quit working.

Q And did you see your doctor? Ii Yes.

Q What doctor? A His name was Dr. Hart.

Q And what 1 s his address? A Oh, I don't know. He

lives miles -- a long distance out of New Yorko

Q Well, whereabou t a? Wha t 1 S the name of the place?'

A I can't tell you.

Q Oh# come; ohi you can remember something.

A If I had my address book I would be hapP'1 to give you the

address ..

Q Well, how far out of New York is it? A It took

almost an hour and a half to get there.

Q Is it Long Island? Is it Westchester? Where is it?

-_.,--------- ---
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A It might have been out in Jamaica.

~ Dr. Hart. How do you spell it? A H-a-r-t.

~ W,", a t J s his fir s t name (! is. I don! t know ~ I ba ve

always called him Dr. Hart.

Q You don't know his first name? A No.

Q Did he charge you any money? Did he charge you for

the vi 81 ts you made to him? A .tie charged me regular doctor s

fees.

Q dow much did you pay? A I think it was $3 a visit,

and it may have been more when I was getting shots.

Q Now, once again, did you -- oh, by the w.ay, you have

that a.ddress book with you, don't· you? A Yes.

Q Where is it? A In my purse out in the other room.

Q Would you go out and get that address book and find

out what that address is? A Surely-

[The witness leaves room and returns.]

( Con t 'd by LB)
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Dr. Iv:e.X Bar t •

Drive.

1 just h~ve Siredt

ri Y~u t~ke the GG

GG tXc.in, tha~ Lexing~on Avenue?

'~ 1 t is une of the local subwtiys'! ... Local'?

Q Yes, 1 t 18 the subway S~8 tem? A It is r.he subrNay,

yes. I jo not remember whe~her it was local or not.

~ YGU Scty it is cut in Jam~ica? tbink i. t 1s in

~ It is in N~w York City, isn't it? A Yes.

cal' 10 ca t e j b. t t 110. t t i ille , i nthe J r i vewa y ? A I r; binkit Vi h S

',.. hen Mr. Pfl eger 1j in ttl:: cc:r :.10,

where were YGu sit~in~ ~nj wasr w~s yeur bus nj sitting,

~ He jyive it &r~unj the block for you? h Yes.



Because he haj a llcense?

h&ve a license, Jij her b Mike h~s olways haj a New York

license.

jij no~ hbve ~n Ohio l1censa. know.

the 010 ok '-,nd

cameuack, ~,l1Ctt if ",nytl"ling 1j Mike 50? A ',;-,e11, we looked,

I ~hink we plckej QP the h00d anj tteylookej arounj in

there t the motor, beC&LlSe 1 jijn't know anytbicg about it.

You ;:re sure 1iike wasn l t in tbe -07.ck sea'S 'INith

you, your hus rend 'f ~ I jc nit be 11 eve so.

~ He was sitting besije the jriver, 1sthat right?

:~I tl1inl{ s 0, yes.

Try snd get those pos1tlons fixed. YG/U cre sure

Q He was in tn~ fron seat? A Yes.

~ Next to the jriverr ~ Yes.

~ You re SUIe of th~t? You re sure he wasn't in

the back seat? You ou;ht to know that. ¥ou are sure he wa t,
81 tting in the back; ycu f-,l'e sure lle was up fron" wl th the

jri ver? r. 1 think he was up fl~ont wi th '::he j:ri vex.

""'... Lo you remember any conv erSEi t-ion between him bn'd

CC.l.T.

You 8urs My.Pfleger w~s in
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.. neD. yuu

anj then come back? Dij yuu look at so~e other cayS tha~

j e.yl

( Con t. by ED)
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A Well, I don.t think we purchased it right away. I think

we went ou t.

Q And came backY A And came back, yes.

Q And did you go for a snack, or did you look at Bome

other cars in that vicinity? A We may have stopped for a

cup of coffee. I don't remember.

Q And you came back. How long after did you come

back; abou t an hour aftsr? A I don t t know. Some time

during the afternoon.

Q And at that time you dickered about the prioe; he

wanted a little more than 750? Was there some conversation

about that? a Yes, I believe somebody had convinced him

that he could have gotten a lot more for it.

Q Then there was some dickering back and forth?

A There might have been.

Q And then you went into the house? A Yes, we went

in the house to sign an agreement.

Q Whel"e was it signed; in the kitchen? A Yes.

Q And it 'Was drawn up in longhand? A Mr. -- the

gentleman drew it up, yes, and we signed it.

Q Mr. Pfleger C? A Ye·s.

~ And while you were there you lookea out the back

window and you saw people in the back yard; is that correct?

A Yes, I think we admired his place.

Q He had a nice place? A Yes, it was quite nice.

Q A big place? A Well, I don't think it was big, noo



It was small, a single-family home, I think; it was a small

single-family home.

Q Well, who wa.s in the back yard, that you waived to?

Do you remember you said you waived to somebody in the back

yard and they waived to you? A I didn't waive to anyone,

because I dim t t know anyone.

Q I tho ught you be ckoned to some body or they wai ved

to you. I thought you said that before. A No.

Q Are you sure? A Yes.

Q Well, then you talked about the price. And there

were conditions there, weren1t there; that he wanted to hold

the car until he got a new one, or something like that?

A Yes. Well, ~~e market was bad and he wasnrt sure of

getting a new one; ana that was why we went into the kitchen

to vr! te up this agreemen t, I believe.

Q And then aftar you had written the agreement up you

then left? A Well, that was the end of the deal.

~rn. LANE: Well, now, I think it's quite late;

it's 1:30. Coula you excuse Mrs. Sldorovlch?

THE FOREMAN: Yes.

But I want to ask you one question. You said some~

one convinced Mr.~ Pfleger of the price. Who was that

bd 2 Ann Sidorovich

someone?

THE WIrnlJ~SS: No. I said --

TTiE FORE~AN: You said someone convinced Mr. Pflege~

of the price, and then you went in. ~ho was the someon~?



bo 3 Ann S1dorovich

THE WI'ffiSSS: Convinced Mr. Pfleger of the price'?

THE FOREMAN: Yes, about the price.

TfrE WITNESS: About the price 'Ne p;. id for it?

T3E FORill\1AN: Yes, 750. Your testimony 1s that

one Gonvin cad Mr. Pfleger that he would sa 11 1 t for

Now, who was that someone?

THE WITNESS: well, ~e did, I and my husband.

T:rE FDREMA..\!: Oh, you are the someones? When you

say n someone, n you mean your hus band and your salf?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. LANE: There was nobody else there, you say?

THE Wli1l ESS: No"

MR. IANE: Is she excused now, Mr. Foreman, until

tomorrovJ?

THE FOREMAN: Yes, until tomorrow.

(WITNESS EXCUSED]

------~- ----



BY MR. LANE:

started out in another direction. I don't recall.

Sidorovich

A No.

SID 0 R 0 V I C H, recalled as e. wi tness,

August 30, 1950

(Mr. La...Y'le)
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MICHAEL

A I don't recall.

Q Do you know the Greenglasses? A I know Dave, yes.

Q Do you know him very well? A Fairly well.

Q To get back to the day you bought the car -- you say

Q You don't want to change your statement at all?

Q Did you meet the Greenglasses there, too'?

Q 1945. A I believe so.

having first been duly sworn by the Foreman, testified

a. s fo llow s :

Q Mike, you know the Rosenbergs, don't you? A Yes.

Q You were at their house one night in January?

A Ja.nuary when '?

that you went out there and you went out tbere alone. Now,

look; if you want to say anything different, say it now, Vi

Q How far was it from Pfleger's house to the bus line?

A Oh, I don't know. I reall y don't remember.
{Cont'd by LB)

you, for your sake.

A I told you -- what I told you, I believe that's the way

it happened.

Q Nobody with you? A' My wife.

e How long did it take you to go back from Pflegerts

house to the bus line? You got a bus back, did you?

A 1 don't even remember how we went back. I think we
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r;o the tiwi':.

b.CUE e 'jO 't.11e bus

line '7

tbat? A Not as soon as 1 took it arounj tbe clock nd trie~

;

;i
... ... 1 '.~.' 1 "'I 1 ",," :1

~ LiJ yeu BuOp anywnerer A· Jon ~ remAllioer. i

.~ You :'10 not reme:mber vvhether yell. Etop·pej or not? fA Nt
:1
J

, You::1o remembeT· that; you b,~ught the· calt as eOon Js
~ :1

. I
you took i~ aroun5 tbe block ~nj trie5 it, you jo remember 11

it. After I spoke to the mana while.

Q You jickereJ a while'! B- Yes;

"i You sal:! before you :Uj riot

I
il

and then 1 bough~ 1tr
leave the place ,and ~

l

came back an hour later? fA No,. 1 :10 not remembe:rjoing th&t·l
,I

\c) Why jitlyoujrive that car if you :i1j uot have anil
~ ~

Ohio license? A I had New York llcense. iI

Q, Di:i you have an Ohio l1cense? fA No, I hs:J a New YOFk
license.!:1

!I

Q WhY were you driving an Ohio car with a New York i
:1

license, you know that's against the law, jon'e you? A It

may be ag~inst the law but I j1] it at the time.
~

~ ';lhy jij you .10 it;; that joesn It illB.ke any sense.

A Asfal' as I know there is no law tile t. says yell cannot'i ,
·1

I
jrive 2ome.bojy else's car if you hve an our; of state lice1$.SE

J

'..:. You sure Pfleger ::1ij Qot ::irive the cs.r arounj

the block? A No.

'""" You say you r::re not sure? A lTo1 I am sure he

:lLd .no t.
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~ YOll are pos1t;ive he jij not ::lrive ;:;he C2r'?

THE FOREMAN: You&re e:xcllse:J until tomorrow_



/ August 31, 1950

(Mr. Lane)

').f.~:f~<'
~._"'~F .t....~,c..........

BY MR. LANE:

a.s follows:

having first been duly sworn by the Foreman, testified

,M ~..:l:,Qrt!g_,EJ-:!,~lI~'£_

I. P F LEG E H, called as a witness"

J,

MILDRED

Q Mrs. Pfleger, you live in Cleveland? A Yea, that's

right.

Q And what is your address? A 5202 Albertly Avenue.

Q And your husband's name is what? A Robert.

Q Do you recall the sale of a car back in 1948?

A Yes, I do.

Q W~&t sort or a car was it that you sold? A It was

a 1941 Studebaker club coupe.

~ And I believe tha t you inserted, or your husband did

an ad in 'One or two of the Cleveland newspapers. A Yes,

that t S rignt.

Q And as a result of that ad your husband received

several inquiries by telephone? A Yes.

\ql, Now, do you recall the pa.rty that purchased that

A Yes, I 0.0.

Q And do youreca11 the date when t.t1.6 -- or, the day

when the car 'Was purchased? Was it a Sunday';! A Yes, it

(' was a Sunday afternoon.

Q And do you recall the month? A Yes, iuly.

Q And the date '( A I 'm not sure 0 f the date. I think

it was the 11th.

Q That's on a Sunday? A Yes, it was on a Sunday.



bd 2 Mildred Pfleger

Q Now, can you tell me what transpired with reference

to the ssle of the car, to your recollection, what you saw?

A well, there were three people that came to look at the

car, there were two men and one woman.

Q And did you actually see them? A I saw them, yes.

Q And where were you? A 1 didn't talk to them, but

I saw them.

Q Wha t time was it in the de.y? 11 I t was in the

afternoon. I would say around two, three o'clock; something

like tha t. I can.! t be sure of the ti.me.

Q And where were you a.t the time' that you saw them'?

A I was in the back yard, sitting out relaxing, and I saw

all of the people.

Q And were there some other people in the back yard

with you?, A Well, they didn r t come back where I was, but

it all transpired on the side of the house.

Q No; I say were there other people in the back yard

with you? A Oh, yes, there was.

Q. Well, who wes there? A My mother and my father.

Q And what are their names? A Mr. and Mrs. Kessner,

Q And your li·ttle son or daughter wa.s there too wi th

yOO? A I think my son was napping a. t the time. I don t t

recall.

Q riow old is he? A He is five.

~ And was there anyone else in the baok yard?

A No, there wasn't.
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Q ~d did you have a view of tne driveway from the

back yard? A Yes, I did.

Q And where was your car parked~ A In the driveway,

about half way up the driveway.

Q Now, could you describe these people? A Well, all

I know is -- I have identifieo the one gentleman. The other

one, all I know is that he was a tall, dark-haired man.

I couldn t t say any more than the. t.. And there was a woman

with them.

Q Now, you saw in my office a few minutes agp two

people who are Ann and Mike Sidorovich? A Yes.

Q Do you identify those two 'people that were there?

A I do.

Q And then you say the:rae was a third man there? A Yes

Q Who is tall and dark '? A Yes, that's right. That's

about all I can say.

~ How far were you away a t the time? A I should say

from here about probably up to the end of that ladder or

whatever that is back there.

Q Say about, oh, it must have been about 30 yards away

A I would say about that.

JUROR: No; that's betvveen 30 and 40 feet.

A (Cont'g) I would say roughly --

About the length of the courtroom here? A Tha.t's

right; maybe. I'm not a very good jUdge of distance. I

don! t know.
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Q And the other man, could you tell about how old he

was? Was he youngish? A Yes, he was a young man.

Q

Tall?

Dark?

A Yes.

A Yes, dark.

Q His features were -- A I really couldn't tell

about his features. I saw the man from the side. I saw him

bending over the car. But that' 8 all I could sa'Jl' about

that gentleman.

Q Was he conversing with your husband a.t that time?

A Yes, he was.

Q Do you recall whether the hood was up Be t tha t time?

A No, I don't recall that.

Q Well, now t I'm going to show you a picture, two

people on the left; end does that refresh your recollection?

A Yes. I saw these people in Cleveland, tOOt this same

picture of these two people.

MR. LANE: May the record indicate that Mrs.

has identified the pictures of the Sidoroviche$, Mike

and Ann.

~ Now, do you recall whether or not they came back

on that· day again? A Yes, they did.

Q About how long after? A Well, they took the car

out for G. little drive. Is that what you mean?

Q Yes. A And then returned.

~ Well, did you see them get into the car? A Yes.

The four of them? A Yes.



Q And do yo u recall who drove the car? A Ye s • I t

was the tall man, I believe.

Q And your husband, where was he sitting; next to him?

A I think he was next to him.

Q, And the Sidoroviches were in the back? A In the

ba.ck. I'm not absolutely positive of tha.t, but 1 think

that's the way it was.

Q, Did you notice how they came up to your place?

Were they talk~~g or in a car? A They were in a car.
-.--''''.-,..

Q Did you see the car? A Yes, I did.

0, Do you recall wbat sort of a car it was? ANa. It

was parked in :front I that's alII 'know about it.

Gi. You don't know the model or anything? A No, I

really don Tt.

Q Did you see them leave in that car? A Well t I can'

say I saw them.

Q The other car, the old car. A No, I can 1 t say I'

saw them leava •

Q ,. But after they took the spin around the block did

they then lea.ve and come back'~ A Yes, they did.

Q And came back how long a.fterwards·{ A I cam' t -- I

don't recall exactly. But it wasn't very ~ong.

Q And the three of them came back again? A Yes.

Q Did you see them again? A Yes.

Q Now, do yo u know if anyone else in the back yard saw

them? A Yes, yes, my folks saw tnem.
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Q They saw the three of them? A Yes, they did.

MR. LANE: Now, if there are no more questions

BY THE JURY:

Q I would like to ask a question. Do you remember

how this tall dark man was dressed? A No; except that he

was in casual clothes, that's all.

Q Did he wear a hat? A I don't believe so.

Q Is there B. place in close proximi ty to your home

where a person could drop in end geta cup of coffee or some­

thing to ea.t? .A No, there isntt.

Q About how far would you think it would be for them

to find some place to eat? A Well, I would say a mile, at

least, either way.

Q On this Sunday in July in 148 that you have been

talking abou t how many people or groups of people came to

your house to look at the car for the purpose of consider­

ing its purchase? A They were the only people that came

on that day, these three.

BY MR. LANE:

Q The only ones you saw. A The only ones that I saw.

Q Did your husband tell you there were others that

A I don I t remember. 1 really couldn It sa.y.

Q Because he told me yesterday tnere were one or two

other people who came that day, but no group of three.

A No; I know we had calls, but, as I say, I don't remember

certain people coming that day.



Q I neglected to ask your husband this yesterday:

Do you know whether or not when the Slaoroviches called in

the morning, whether they gave their name to your husband·?

A I don't reca.ll that. I don't believe they did.

~,~R • LANE: Well, I haven't a.ny more questions.

THE FOREMAN: You are excused, Mrs. Pfleger; end

thank you very much •.

[WI~ESS EXCUSED]



having first been sworn by the Foreman, testified as

BY NTH e LANE:

Q Mr. Sidorovicl1 ft you may recall that in my office a few

minutes a.go you said to me that you thought that this Grand

JUr-\J had already indio ted you for something ..' Do you recall

the t '? A I do ~

Q Well, nO\lIJ,' in your presence I Wro going to ask the

Foreman Cf, the Grand Jury if the re hs s been any lndi ctnlEln t

at all a.s far as yhu or your wife is concerned ..

Is there" Mr .. Foreman'?

THE FOREMAN: There has been no indic1;ment what­

soever- .. we just want you to telll the trll t:h.

Q The. t T E on the record now" I tol~ you I would. assure

you of that as a te'stimonial afmy good fal th -...;; do you re-

call that'? -- downfB.tElirs~ A I dO$

Q So, it being a part of the record~ there can t t be any

question about that to There has been no indictment. There

has been no discussion" as yet, as to y;hat this Jury is

going to do with respect to your testimony.

Now J let me get back again to the occasion in 1948 when

you purchased the car from Rob~rt .B.; .. Pfleger II That W8.·S in

the early part of JU1Ji-, 1948 .. You testified ,hat you went

out to his home on a Sundta.y afternoon; is that correct?

A That's right. That's my recollectlon~ That's correct.

Sidorovi ch

SID 0 R 0 V I C H, called as a witness,.

1950August 31 ~
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A The.t's my re colleetion, just u.s

bo 2 Sidorcvich

Q And .111 yeu·tell the Jury once again how you went to

the home of' M.r .. Robert Pfleger"( ..n I believe that 1 used

public transportation in rea.ching the home of Robert Pfleger"

and that consisted of a street car or street cars and bus,

and tha t ViJben I arrived a t the end of the bus line I walked

to the home of MrG Pfleger~

Q Who accompanied youg? A I recall onl~{thatmy wife

accompa.nied me.

Q Are you posi tive that nobodJr else accompanied you?

A I 'ro qui te sure the. t nobody' e1 se accompanied me. _

Q Are you sure there 'IIJaSn 1. t a third person vuith you?

A I can't recall any third person.

Q, Was there another man wi tb you on the OCC asi on '?

A I can t t recall any third person, any man or. anyone.

Q. Your best recollection is that just you and your

wi fe wen t out to thi s Mro Pfleger t 5 house? A ThQt' s corI;e ct e

Q An:iwhere was Mr0 Pfleger's C£d~ parked'~ A As I re­

call, the car was p~1rked in the driveway 41

Q And where did you d1 SCUBa the purchase of th.e car

with Mr., Pfleger't A In the ariveway.

Q And who was present duri.ng the course of that dis­

cussion? A Mr. Pfleger.$ my" wi fe a.nd I.

Q Just you three?

three",

Q Did you dr~iva up to the house, Mr .. Pfle ger' shouse $

in an automobile that G.a:Y? A No ..



bd 3 Sidorovich

C; Were you in an automobile that da.y when you. came up

to Kr. Pflegerts house? A No~

Q Did you leave Mr 0 Pfleger' ~ house in sn autoIoobile?

A No.

Q. P..na when I say Ie:ave his house. in an Gutomobil,e, I

mean after you had flnlshed 'your conversation about the car

did you leave in any car other· than Mr. Pflegerfis. You may

reca.ll you took.& trip around the block in'Mrt
• Pfleger's car;,

bu t that vs no t what I 'm referring to .. ' I apeeifm:a11y refer to

your leaving at· the conclusi.on of your conversations relative

to the purchase of the car; how did you leave hi B place?

TEE FOREM:AN: What's the answer?

THE WI 'IN i~SS: Qui tEl, po 81 ti '7e 8

returned by the same route or whether we took s, stree t car It

I don ~ t

A. On foot.

Q How did YOu return to Cleveland on that day after

Q, And who a.ccompa.nied you? ..A MY' wife~

Q Was he presont on tba t Sunde::r during your eonversa.-

tioD with Mr. Robert Pfleger and your wife? A No.

Q You are positive of that? A Quite positive.

Q, Do y'ou know a Mr. Perl or Mr~ ferlmutter? A I have

heard the name and I have seen the picture, but I don't re-

call ever meeting Mr4 Perlmutter *

recall just how we returned. I don!trecall whether we

you had tE.~lked wi th Mr. Pfleger? A I tm not

1 know we walked qui te a while going back.



Q How long did you walk, going back? h Well, you

mean d.ura tion?

Q Yes.. A I could.n't give ~TOU a positive answer to that~

Q How many blo cks di d you covert? Ii Going back?,

~ On your way back.ll walking, befe,re you boarded any

transportation. A Well, that's difficult for me to answer,

because as we walked we were chatting and we weren!t paying

too much attention to distance; & It v~as really am afternoon

stroll" We had done some business and 'We were returnin.g home'li

Q On that Sunday afternoo~ when you went to Robert

Pfleger t s home you said that ~-ou took a ride around the

bloCki and you said that JfOU drove the car around the block;

is tbat correct? A That's correct.

Q And you said. that Mr. Pflegert was in the' front seat

beside you; is that c:orrect~} A That's correct.

Q And you said that your wife was in the back seat;

is that correct? A That's correct.

Q And you said there was nobody else in the car; is

that carre ct~'; A That f s correct.

Q NOw; when you returned from that brief drive around

the block did you then consumate the deal with Mr. Pfleger

for tne car? b My recollection is that I didn't even drive

it up the driveway again and that he got in and drove it

back into the position that it was in before. ,I believe'

there was another car that was sitting there or had pulled

into the ariveway and pad" pulled out before he could pull in

be 4 Sidorovich
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againe And I remember I talked to him about the car. I

looked at the tires of the car. I asked him to open the

trunks so I could look in the back, and asked him about the

radle, and I might have spoken abcu t a lot of i terns. I mean

. tbose are that I recall e And we talked and I asked him what

he wanted and he quotod me a price and 1 offered him, I be­

lieve less, and we haggled back and forth. -- rather, "haggled n

is a bad word; we dickered back and forth about the price

and I believe 'flle finally came to B.n understanding on the

pri ce when I men ti oIled to him th at I hs.d telephoned him and

that he had quoted me a figure whicll wa.s grester than the

one I offered him but less than the one that he was asking

for@ And then he didntt accept immediately. He told me

that he had other people look at the car and that his

friends, I belleve t had suggested to him that the car would

probably be worth. mor'6 than he was asking for it. An d he was

reluctant to accept my offere Well, we sat around there and

talked about other thingse But I don't remember -- I mean

just chit-chat, without tal.lking about the carat all. And

then I believe v~e started talking about' the car a,gain 8 I

made him another -- I made him the same offer and he. told

me his c1rcumsta.nce, being he had ordered a.nother car but he

di.dn ~ t know whe: ther he woulo get delive~y and that if he made

any -- if he sold the car it would have to be with that

understa.nding, that if he could.n v t get the car within a

.spa cified period of time, for m'Y' protection and his p I would.
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have to release him from any promise of selling me the car.

So then .1 believe 'We decided to pu t that in wri ting e I don t t

remember whether I suggested it or he suggested it. But we

wen t into the ki tchen lof his home and while, there he wrote

out two copies of an agreement and after we had both signed

it we let't» and tha. t VIi a s tha to;

Q In other words~ there was no break between the time

you took the CB.r a.round the block and the time ths.t you

actually constllnmated the deal? A I can't recall any break.,

Q . Did you and yourn wife leave the premlses after you

had returned fI"om the ahort d.rive Bnd before you consummated.

the deal? A I can't recall that we left at all~

~ Now, you say there was a car in the driveway when

you returned from the short dl~iva" A 1 believe there lUlS a

car in the dri vew ay •

q. W~a.t sort of a car was it? A I t was a pretty big

car, blg and I think it was a pI'~ettj'" old ca.r. I dontt re=

m~!ber just what the circumstm!cea were~

Q That ~ s when you. CBIne back from the orive around the

block, l'JQsn It it 4? A That Us right.

c;-~. How~ long did that dri we around. the block take; afevy

minutes~ A Yes. I think we only rode around -- well, it

wa'sn t t just one block • I tb.ink we rode around three or four

blo oka in a circle there-- rather" in a. square there., Ther~

is an area there which he pointed out was free of traffic,

it was good testing, because, he said, that oCcQsion[{lly.the
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Ohio state Patrol used that area for testibg applicants for

drivers' licenses. And I recall that because at that time

my vv1fe dian t t knovJ how to dri ve and I thought to myself

if I had a space like that closer to home, it would have

been a good place to take my wife out and teach her to drive.

~ Now, was that big old car in the driveway when you

reacbed the house before you talked to Mr. Pfleger a.t all?

A That I don! t recall e I remember that he was pa_rked in

the driveway not veri far from the sidewalk."

Q I s it e. long drivew ay? A I don t t remember II I don!

even remember whether he had a garage or not.

Q" Wha.t sort of a house did he have"'! A I don 1 t remembeir

tne house~ But I remember he had a fence separati.ng his

dri vel'Jay from the house, through which" we. ne..d to pas s in order

to get to his kitcnen*

Q, Did you see the people in the back yard'? A There

were some people in the back yard, yeB~

Q Did you talk with them? A No, I don't believe I

tQlked to them.

l:t Did they wai ve to you? A No.

Q Did your wife talk to them? ~ To these people?

Q Yes e A ".,. don't recallll>.L

Q Did you look at each other4"l A we must have looked

a. t ea.ch other, because we walked by them. I mean they --

as I recall, we had to walk throug~ a fence in the back,of

"the house in order to get into the kitchen; we entered



remember.

wh~rle 1V1.r. Pfleger Iived.e

I really can 't

that you went by trolley car a

Sidor'ovich

Q From the end 0 f the bus line'~ A ,F'rom the bus to

I walked,., a1 together .'

I woulo. venture a guess that it was ten blocks or Itl88 that

witlk~' A \rVell~ I have been thinking a.bout that since one

you walked for about half an hour or so. How far did you

Q And you said that you got lost out there for a while,

correct? A ThatVs correct.

of the Jur~Tmen a aka d me a bout it ye sterda)", and I think thQ t

QN ow, on your way out there JJ your testimony was --

Q, Well" roughly.. A ~ven roughly I has! tate to make

Q Now, when you returned to Cleveland cid you go to the

Q How far away were you from those peopl~ in the ba.ck

I
even an approx:1.matiorJ1 1 because I ¢ion t recall it ver'j1 clearljfot

certain ways and then you got off B.nO took 8. bus and you

went to the end of the line end then you walked; is that

up to. the PfIe gars f house

through the rear, not through the fren t@

[\ You "Wen t through the back yard? A Thatfs right ..
C(,

Q And tbose people were out in the back yaI'd?

yard. '? A well jI we didn ~ t have to pass right bj"" them» that I

Q How many fe~t away were you? From where you are to·

where I am? A Oh, I thinlt it· was much flAr ther than that.

A They were out in the back yard*

bo 8
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same spot, the end of the bUB line, to get the bus'?

A That I don't recall. I donlt recall that we tcol{ that

same route.. I believe v~e walked in a different direction&

(t. Well, was there any reason for you walking in a.

different direction? A Yes.. Because we weren't in any

hurry to get home.

Q HOVJ fa.r d.id you walk before y·ou got the bus" how

many blocks? A Well, I don!t recall whether W6.went back

by Qua or not. I don't recall going back by bus.

Q Well, I think you said» yesterday~ that you did.

A Returning?

Q Yes. A I don It believe I. said that.·

'<=(. I think you said you wen t back the s amel way.

A I don it recall goin.g back the same way.

~,v!ijelll so much for that" When did you buy that house

at Chappaqua'? A I belie'\vYe I bought that house in Chappaqua

in -- I'm not·po~itive as to whether it was in '42 or Y43~

I believe it was in '43.. I believe I 11 ved there two years

and that t S why· I say I believe I bought it in '43.

Q. Where did you get the money to buy this automobl1e Ct

A It was money which I had been putting aside over a period

of time towal~as a new car whi ch I hoped to get 6 I could.n' t of­

I hadntt expecteo. to pay ou~right for the car; I had expected

to buy it on the installment plan.

Q Where was the money, in the bank? . A No. I believe

it 'i'Jas _.- part oJ' it was probably a.t home and part of it I
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beli~ve I kept in a safa deposit box~

Q. Where? A In the .l,iational City Bank of Gleveland@

Q You still have it:: A I still have the box.

Q, ~~ha. t els.9 did you keep in the box? A Soma insurance

policies \'\?hich I had and my bonds $

( Con t 1.' d by LB)
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recall.

Q You donit recall the insurance company'? A No.

You see, 1 t was a polley tha t my parents had &aken out for

me, and they ha,d oeen maki n~ the paymen'lis on i i.·

Q Where did you ca·s hit in1 A At the offioe, and

the office was 1n Brooklyn.

Q Whereabouts in Brooklyn? A 1 ~onuG remember.

I mean, I rlon 8 t know what company it was. I don't think

it was the MeGropo11tan. 1& could have been

Q WWh8t part of Brooklyn was it in? A I remember I

went down juring my lunch period, a.n~ while I was wbrking

for the Koll-Morgen Opti ~l Corporation, and I took a

street car and I was able to do it; in my lunch period

wi thout losing any time. That is, 1 gO'G to the offioe

and returned before my half hour expired.

Q You donIe know the name of the oompany? A r donUt

recall the name.

Q Why did you move up there·? A Where?

\~. To Chappaqua. What we.s- the purpose' of gOing way

uP there in the wilderness? A I\; w8sn' t in the wilderness",

Ohappaqua is in Westchester County_
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Q That's my concluslon in my ques;1on$ I will s;ill

word it t hat way. WhY did you go way up ,here in lihe

wilderness of Chappaqua, a m1le ann a half from the rail­

road, in a place where you ha~ ~o ge' up around f1ve or

five-th1rty in the morning to geu '0 work and you did not

get home until late at n1gh;, when you were at that time

working 1n Brooklyn, and at tihe 1; ime you purchased the

bouse you were l1Ving 1.0 Knickerbocker Village? Whall's

the reason for going away up there? A It is hard to explafn

the reason, bUti -I will try. You see, I was ~,orking, an;j

of course I never owned any property, and I had a friena

who was looking for a place for himself, anti he told me

soout ;his place whlch he had seen but which was unsuitable

for him. He invited me one time, I and my wife and some

other peopl,e, to take a ride Oilt w1.th him and look at ili.

So we rode out and looked a t it and it was very attraoti v~.

Of course we hajn1t hC\.j any experienoe in maliters like

this, bu; it was a very reasonable proposl1iion. It was

one acre of lanjand a small five" room bungalow on tha~

one aOTe of land. It had an inside toilet and it had a

system for washing water anj there was a pump in the baok,

and the prioe was very reasonable. Thepr1ce was only

$2500 and i 1;; could beoough t on a land con trae t·, for $500

down, and we jldn't have the $500, so I tried to interest

mY fam11y in 1 ti, and my parents, in loaning me the money,

but 'hey ,hough; I was young and lnexper1enoej, and I



LB-9
Sldorovich

insuranoe money we had juS t about enou15h , but we figured

that we needed about $100 to take care of any inC1:1entals

s Reh as moving a.nd what not, and weborrowedtha t from her

kid brother ..

Q Who was ,hat? A Paul.

Q Paul what? A Hanus1ak.

Q. Where did he 11ve1 A He l1ved a t lila t time wi th

his parents in New Haven, Oonn.

Q. fl'h1s was in nineteen forty what? A 042 or 843·

Q Anj you purchased bonds after that, more bonds?

A Yes, I ha1 the .~- not the checkoff -- this w1thholding'

imagine that they recalled the old mortgage days when a

man coal d lose' every thing 1 f he di n no t know wha t he was

joing. That was of course before many of these inequities

were corrected. And 60 they were reluo~ant to loan me ;he

money, but I spoke it; 01i'eX with my wlfe and this friend who

showed me the place, ana he thou~~, 1t was a good jaBl, ann

it was very at,ractive, and we wen' ahead and boughi 1~,

aod we had to raise that $500, which was veryjifficult,

'but we managed to raise that ..

Q Where ~l,d you ge; the balanC)6 of the money other

than your. insurance? A 'I'hen my wife oahsed in her policy ~

Q. Whati company was that wi th? A That I do not know'

either.

Q, How mucb did you get on thaii1 A I believe she

well, when we combined our oonjs and our,go; about
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sys;em a; the plant where r worked where they kep~ back a

certain amount for bon1s every pay day.

Q How much bonds do you have now? What's the rounj

f1gure? A I have one Dond now.

Q. One bond, is tha~ all? A Yes.

Q WhatBS the denomination? A I paid $75 for i'.
It is a $100 bond.

Q. 1stha~ all yon have? A Ri ghii now the t •saIl.

Q How much of a bank aceoun, jo you have now?

A Now I believe I have bet; 1i~r than .$200 10. the bank.

Q That comprise all your assets in the world?

A Bo; I believe we had aoout we came here with abou;

$200.

Q: So thSb you have less than a ~housand dollars

nOw? A Yes ..

Th8 t ~ S you and your wife? A Johst' s I and my wife.

lLR. LANE: Mro Foreman~ can he oetemporarl1y

exCUS ej an~ directed to comeback tomorrow --to wa1~t

ou~sije, and if he joesn 8
t come back today, to come

back tomorrowo

THE FOREMAN: You are temporarily exoused.

(WITNESS EXOUSED)
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ANN H . SID OR 0 V I 0 E, recaled ari.~ again"~T~-~

~uly sworn by the Foreman, tessifled as follows:

THE WITNESS: Mr- Lane, oefore we get s_arte~
,

I woul~ 11ke to clear up a point that was made ye8ter~

day by the Foreman.
IMR. LANE: Yes, go right ahead. !
i

tHE WITNESS: The las, point that was discusse~
I

before ~he adjournment yesterday. Yoa quo~ed a stat~

~

ment I made, and then you. ques tioned me aoou.1i it. I j

wonder if loan have my statement read from yesterda~ts

reoord? I
MR. LANE: What is, your recolleotion of the i

statemen'?

THE WITNESS: It had to do with 'he sale of

a car. The Foreman said that I haa said that Xr.

Pfleger -- someone Qd convinoed Mr. Pfleger on the

price o:r the oar.

THE FORE!5AN:

THE WITNESS:

That I Bright -- someone.
i

Someone. I recollect saying th~t

~

Now, if we migh; have the tread, I should like to

someone had convinced Xr. Pfleger that he oould get :
I

more, much more for the oar than he had quoted to us!
I

on the telephone, and that is what I was referring tt.
I

have it read.

MR. LANE: Just ~ive us again your best

reoolleo~ion of what transpired in reference to a
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11 THE WI'fIESS: Well, when we :tid get there, when

we were discussing pxi~e, Mr. Pfleger quoted a higher

priee to ~s after we got there than the one tha~ had

been quoted to us on the telephone, and I think that

was what made uS hesi tate aoout the purchase of the

oar, and then there was some haggling to pr1ng the

price down to what he ha~ quoted us on the telephone.

I think in the interim, between our get.lng to his

home and the time we had telephoned, someone had

talked to him and convinced him that his price W8S

low according to the car market prices-

THE FORDAN: And it was that someone you md

reference tor

THE WITNESS: Yes. I bope that is clear. Is i

BY MR. LANE:

Q Let me take you back to the day, that Sunday in

July of 1948, when you went out to Mr. Pfleger's house

with your husband to purohase the car. I ask YOu once

again, what method of transportation :il j you use ingo1D!

ont to Mr- Pfle~erls house on that sunday in July?

A Well, I believe it was a street oar and a bus.

Q Who acoompanied you? A No one. Michael and I

were alone.

Q You say you and your husband went alone? A Yes.

Q No one accompanien YOU? A No-

Q An~ jid you go to the end of the bue line? A I
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don't 1'emembe'l" whel1her we ~i:i because we ~i :in' t know how~o­

get there actually. We went somewhere in Palmer, I believr

it is.

Q Did you by any chance ~rive up in an automobile

accompanie~ by a thi:r~ party wben you went to :Mr. Pfleger'Js

bouse tha; afternoon? A We ha~ no automobile. I don't

think we did.

Q What is the answer, yes or no? A No, we did not. !

Q Was there a third party wi th you when you were ta~k~
j

1*& aboui the automob1le wfeb IIr. Pfleger on that Suntlay

afternoon? A BOi just the three of us, Mr. Pfleger, Mike;

an4 I.

Q You are oer~a.1n there was nobody else there?

A I am fairly oertain, yes.

Q You are fairly oertain? A Yes.

Q well, are you oertain! A I said Ilia11'ly" because

yOU insisted there was someone. I am sa.re there was notf

Q As far as you know, what is your best reoollection!,

A As far as I can recall, we were alone.

Q The three of you? A Yes.

Q Mr. Pfleger, you and your hUsband? A fl'hat's

right ..
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A Yes, I be11eve ther~ was.·· I t-ainkt ba t time?

there was another one.

Q Where was the other car located? A I 1on 1 t

remember whether it was in the ariveway or somewhere

olose to the driveway.

Q What sor~ of a car waS it? A I get the

impression of a oar, large old car~ I think.

Q There were two cars in the driveway? A I believe

LB-4

SO, yes.

Q Where was the oar thai you were 100kinC at

located in relation to the second oin Oar, was it in

front of the old oar or behind it? A I think iC was in

front going toward the back of the house. I am not

positive but I think we had to go around this large oar

to get to the other car·

Q The oar, the Studebaker that you were looking

at, was in front or 1nbaak of the cld oar? A loaD' t

say for oertain. It was there. I do not know whether

it was baok or ftont, defini tely.
I

Q So you and your husband and Mr. Pfleger discusse8

the automobile and after you finished talking abou'li the I
i

. I

automobile was there some sugleB~1Gn about ~ry1ng the oari
I

• !out? A Yes; we 30n t usually bUy a car without rldlng .

it around.

Q I jidn't ask that. The question was: (Queet10n~

I
II So you an~ your hus'bw j aa4 .Mr. Pfleger disoussed the I

Ialltomob1le and aftee you finished talking about the auto-I

---"-1-
1
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mobile was there some suggestion about trying the car

out?" reaj by the stenographer.) Will you please give me
I

a yes or no answer? A I ~on t remember e~ctly, but I

suppose there was because we :iid get into the car and

rode arouna.

Q When you got into the oar where were yo~ located?

A You mean in the car?

yes.

Q Atd then you got out of the oar? A Yes.

Q And then what did YOU~o? A Well, I remember his

lifting the hood and sbow1nC Michael the inside of the oar,

the mecba~t1mS and the motor and things.
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Q AzX1 then :i1d you lea ve the place for a wbile?

A Yes, ~think we did. ~ think we did beoause Kr.Pfleger

wanted more money and we were hesitant about paying more

for 1t.

Q He wanted more money, so you left? A Yes.

Q Where did you go when you lefl? A 1 ~ontt

remember where. I think there was a broad avenue close

by and I think we probably went and stopped for coffee

in one of the small restaurants or something.

Q Right close by? A Close by.

Q A few blocks? A I would say not more than abou1i

f1ve blocks.

Q You subsequently returned on that day? A Yes, we

went back the same afternoon, yes.

Q WbY dld you return? A Well, we decided itwas a

good car. We ha::l' seen many others that had not oompared

to this one, and we though t if we oould convince llr.

Pfleger to sell it at his original price q~otatlon we _Qulb
I

be able to purOhase it. i

Q During this 1nterv,al that you were, as you say,

having coffee, did you see any other cars? ABo,.1 don t t

bel1eye we went shopp1qg for other care at tha~ partioular

time.

Q ~n~ when you left Mr. Ffleier's house that day for

the f1rst _1me ~ia you anj Mike procee~ on foot? A Yee,

we walked •

._--------._--
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Q Were you in any automobile tha' ~ay outs1~e of

Mr. pflecer's automobile? A Well, 1 don't remember w~

we jid after we left Mr. Pfleger's the seoond time. We

-..k may have gone looking at others to convince ourselves

it was a good buy, but I don't remember that;. I don't

remember whau we nld.

Q Hadn't you made a down payment of $1001 A We

made a :iown payment. I jen't remember the amount.

Q 60 tbaij you probably did not look at any other

oars that jay. ~ Well, you JO sometimes when you bUy

something.

Q Well, did you? A I donlt remember what we did.

I Say, we may h~ve.

Q When you came back the seoond time, did you mee~

Mr- Pfleger ~n the driveWaY or where was he when you came

back the seoona time? A I believe he was further back in

the baok yard or some place.

Q Were there other people in the back yard? A Yes,

I recollect thau there were other people.

Q Did you see other people back there? A Yes, 1

think there were other people there.

Q Did you enter Mr. Pfleger's house? A Yes.

Q And who accompanied you? A Just the three of

us, Mike, I and Mr. Pfleger waled into the k1tohen.

Q Did you go by way of the back 'oor? A YOQ had

to go along the sideof the house and through a lIttle yard~o__ 0 ---------------~~I--o

!
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I thi.nk, and into thekltchen.

Q. 'l'hrough the back joor? A I would say eo.

Q And there were some people inthat back yard at

that time? A Yes, I belleve there were.

Q Do you recall who was there, can yIDU jescribe

the people? A No, I couldn't desoribe them. There were

a number, possibly three or four, maybe five, but I donlt!

remember wha~ they lookea like.

went 1n through the kltcben door?

Q
i

How far away were you from those people when YOu!
I

A It would be from aboQt
f

here to

l
I
I

some
!
i

1
I
i,
I
i

A Who 1s Perl?

I believe there wasA

(Cont. by ED)

To the jury box? A No, it was a little furtherQ

A Yes.

!
I
i
I .

tban that. I would say that the first row of seats behin4 _
. I

Q About ;wenty or thirty feet? A Something like th4t.
~ I

Q You could see them all right and they could see I
\

Q Did you talk to them?

exchange of conversation.

Q Where was Perl all this time?

you?



You never saw hi~? A I'm quite sure I haven't.

Q You don't know who Perl 1s? A No. +.,
f

!

I
your I

I

t
!
i;

A No.

A No.

MR. LANE: Mr. Foreman, would you excuse

Do you know perlmutter'? Was he there?

In fact, was there anybodY there except you and

Q

Q

~
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husband'?

Re1LE
8/31/50
(Mr. Lane)

TAEE II

Mrs. Sidorovich for the day and request her to return

here tomorrow at a quarter to el~ven?

THE FOREMAN: You are excused. And report

at a quarter to eleven.

[WITNESS EXCUSED]

!
I

tomorro~
!
I

I




